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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of R S Brothers
Retail India Private Limited will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 11.30 a.m. at the
registered office of the Company situated at Door No: 7-2-1740, Opposite to Fire Station Office, Main
Road, Sanath Nagar, Hyderabad - 500018, Telangana, India, at a shorter notice, to transact the
following business:

Ordinary Business

1.

Adoption of Financial Statements of the Company:

To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024, including the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement
of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date and the
reports of the Board of Directors (‘the Board”) and Auditors thereon, and to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024 together with the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon be and are
hereby received, considered, approved and adopted.”

Appointment of Statutory Auditors:
To consider and approve, if thought fit with or without modification the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time
to time, M/s. Laxminiwas & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 011168S), Hyderabad,
be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of
5 years i.e. from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the
215t AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2029, at such remuneration as may be mutually
agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors.

by order of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

SD/-
Venkateswarlu Potti

Place: Hyderabad Director
Date: 25/09/2024 DIN: 01430443
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Notes

L.

10.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and, on a poll,
to vote instead of himself and the Proxy need not be a Member of the company.

Members/Proxies are requested to bring the attendance slip — Refer Annexure A duly filled in for
attending the Meeting.

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form — Refer Annexure B, at the
Registered Office of the company not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

A person appointed as proxy, can act as a proxy for not more than 50 Members and holding in aggregate
not more than 10% of the total paid up share capital of the Company having voting rights.

A Member holding more than 10% of the paid up share capital of the Company may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person appointed cannot act as proxy for any other Member.

A Corporate Member intending to send its authorized representatives to attend the Meeting in terms of
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the Meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of Meeting and ending
with the conclusion of the Meeting, a Member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time
during the business hours of the company, provided not less than three days’ notice in writing of the
intention so to inspect is given to the company.

All documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the company on
all working days of the company between 11:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. up to the date of the AGM and at the
venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

The route map of the AGM venue along with the nearest landmark is attached at the end of the notice —
Refer Annexure C.

As this meeting is being convened at a shorter notice, the members are requested to kindly accord their
consent for holding this meeting at a shorter notice.




Annexure A
ATTENDANCE SLIP
To be presented at the entrance

Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s. R S BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED to be held at registered office of the Company situated at Door No:7-2-1740,
Opposite to Fire Station Office, Main Road, Sanath Nagar, Hyderabad - 500018, Telangana, India on
Monday, the 30™ day of September, 2024 at 11.30 a.m at a shorter notice.

Regd. Folio No. , No. of shares held:
Name of the Member: , Signature:
Name of the Proxy holder: , Signature:

I hereby record my presence at the sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Monday, the 30" day of September, 2024 at 11.30 a.m. at a shorter notice at the Registered Office of
the Company.

1. Only Member / Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.
2. Member / Proxy holder should bring his / her copy of the notice for reference at the Meeting.




Annexure B
FORM NO. MGT 11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN U47510TG2008PTC058454
Name of the company: R S BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Door No:7-2-1740, Opposite to Fire Station Office, Main Road, Sanath
Registered office: Nagar,

Hyderabad - 500018, Telangana, India

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

Email 1d:

Folio No. / Client ID:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of ................... shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
Name:

L Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

Or failing him
Name:

2 Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

Or failing him
Name:

3 Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the sixteenth Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, the 30" day of September, 2024 at 11.30 a.m. at a shorter
notice at the Registered Office of the Company situated at Door No:7-2-1740, Opposite to Fire Station Office,
Main Road, Sanath Nagar, Hyderabad - 500018, Telangana, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolutions
S.no Resolutions (Please Tick [v'or X] against the
box)

Ordinary Business

1. Adoption of Financial Statements of the Company

2. Appointment of Statutory Auditors

Signed this day of 2024

Signature of shareholder Affix
Revenue

Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)




Annexure C
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Directors’ Report

To,
The Members,
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited.

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixteenth Annual Report of the Company with the
Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Financial Results of our operations
The Financial results for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 are given below:

(Amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Financial Year ended Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations 245799.12 212671.89
Other income 2771.48 2578.64
Total Income 248570.60 215250.53
Total expenses 238544.18 205806.57
Profit / (Loss) before tax 10026.42 9443.96
Tax expense:
Current tax expense for current year 3529.52 3266.76
Deferred tax expenses/(benefit) 42.03 549.99
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
. 1145.23 -
of previous years
Profit / (Loss) for the year 5309.64 5582.21
Basic Earnings per share 65.47 68.83

State of Company’s affairs and future outlook

The company, engaged in the trading of textiles, garments, and other allied business activities, has
shown robust growth prospects. With a satisfactory business model, the company has successfully
registered significant growth in profits, reflecting its strong market position. The management is
actively exploring various options to diversify operations further, aiming to expand market reach and
sustain growth momentum.

Company’s performance
Revenue from the operations of the Company has been increased from Rs.2126,71,89,000/- for the

FY 2022-23 to Rs.2457,99,12,000/- for the FY 2023-24.
Total revenue of the Company has been increased from Rs.2152,50,53,000/- for the FY 2022-23 to
Rs.2485,70,60,000/- for the FY 2023-24.

Net Profit of the Company has been decreased from Rs. 55,82,21,000/- for the FY 2022-23 to
Rs.53,09,64,000/- for the FY 2023-24.




Change In Nature of Business
During the year company has not changed its nature of business.

Material changes and commitments if any affecting the financial position of the Company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this Financial Statements relate and the

date of the report
There have been no material changes and commitments for the likely impact affecting financial
position between end of the financial year and the date of the report.

However, company has filed application with Registrar of Companies for conversion from Private
limited company to public limited company after the end of reporting financial year and application is
yet to be approved.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators/ courts/ tribunals impacting
the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

Share Capital
Authorized Share Capital: Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024 was

Rs.100,00,00,000/- comprising of 10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. During the year under
review, Authorized Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs.9,00,00,000/- to
Rs.100,00,00,000/-.

Paid-up Share Capital: During the year under review, there was no change in Paid-up Share Capital of
the Company. Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024 was Rs. 8,11,00,000/-
comprising of 81,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

Buy Back of Securities: The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under
review.

Sweat Equity: The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.
Bonus Shares: The Company has not issued any bonus shares during the year under review.

Equity Shares with differential voting rights: The Company has not issued any Equity Shares with
differential voting rights during the year under review.

Employees Stock Option: The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the
employees.

Deposits
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from public within the meaning of

Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
during the year under review.

Transfer to Reserves
The Board of Directors has decided to transfer the entire amount of profits for FY 2023-24 to the
reserves and surplus as detailed in the financial statements.

Dividend
Your Directors have not recommended any dividend on Equity Shares during the year under review.

Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund
During the year, there was no unclaimed dividend amount to transfer to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.




Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies
During the year under review there were no Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies to
the Company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments made under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013

During the year under review, the Company has not made any loans or investments or given any
guarantees under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure-A to the Directors’
Report.

Directors

Mr. Venkateswarlu Potti, Mr. Prasada Rao Tiruveedhula, Mr. Raja Mouli Seerna, Mr. Seerna Suresh,
Mr. Venkata Sai Abhinay Potti, Mr. Rakesh Tiruveedhula and Mr. Keshav Gupta Tiruveedhula are
continuing as Board Members of the Company, are continuing as the Directors of the Company.
There was no change in the composition of the Board in the relevant financial year.

Based on the confirmations received from all the directors, none of the directors are disqualified from
appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013.

Board Meetings
The Board met Eleven (11) times during the financial year 2023-24. The intervening gap between any

two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

Attendance of each director at the Board Meetings and General Meeting held during the year 2023-24
is as follows:

A. Board Meeting:

. Venkata
Date of Venkateswarlu | Prasada Rao Roj a. Seerna Sai Keshav Rakesh
Board . . Mouli . Gupta .
. Potti Tiruveedhula Suresh | Abhinay . Tiruveedhula
Meeting Seerna Potti Tiruveedhula
29/05/2023 Present Present Absent | Present | Present Present Present
29/06/2023 Present Present Present | Present | Present Present Present
11/07/2023 Absent Absent Absent | Present | Present Present Present
25/08/2023 Present Present Present | Present | Present Present Present
02/09/2023 Present Present Present | Present | Present Present Present
25/09/2023 Present Present Present | Absent | Absent Present Present
06/11/2023 Present Present Present | Present | Present Present Present
28/11/2023 Present Present Present | Present | Present Present Present
04/12/2023 Present Present Present | Present | Present Present Present
20/02/2024 Present Present Present | Present | Present Present Present
13/03/2024 Present Present Present | Present | Present Present Present
B. Attendance of Directors:
SI. . . . No of Meetings which were NO'.Of
Name of the Director Designation . Meetings
No entitled to attend
Attended
1 Venkateswarlu Potti Director 11 10
Prasada Rao .
2 Tiruveedhula Director 11 10
3 Raja Mouli Seerna Director 11 9




4 Seerna Suresh Director 11 10
5 Ven}(ata Sai Abhinay Director 11 10
Potti
Keshav Gupta .
6 Tiruveedhula Director 11 11
7 Rakesh Tiruveedhula Director 11 11
C. General Meetings During the Year 2023-24
Total number of Numb:;ttendance
Type of Meeting Date.of Members entitled to of % of Total
Meeting attend at the .
Meetin members | Shareholding
g attended
Annual General Meeting 30.09.2023 5 5 100
Extra Ordinary General 18.03.2024 13 13 100
Meeting
Auditors

Statutory Auditors

The term of M/s. R C V & Co., Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad (Firm Registration No. 017180S)
as Statutory Auditors of the Company is expiring by conclusion of this AGM. Board of directors
proposed to appoint M/s. Laxminiwas & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 011168S), Hyderabad in
place of the retiring auditor.

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, M/s. Laxminiwas & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN
0111688S), are proposed to be appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 (Five)
consecutive years from the conclusion of ensuing 16" Annual General Meeting held in the year 2024
up to the conclusion of the 21% Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2029, and that, the
necessary resolution in this respect is being included in the Notice for the approval of the members of
the Company.

The Company has received a certificate from M/s. Laxminiwas & Co., Chartered Accountants,
confirming their eligibility to be appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of the
provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder.

The Report given by the M/s. R C V & Co., Auditors on the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2024 of the Company is part of the Annual Report. The notes to the accounts referred to in
the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

Internal Auditors
The Company has appointed internal auditors of the Company as required under section 138 read with
Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The statutory auditors have considered the report given by the internal auditors, in determining the
nature, timing and extent of their audit procedures.

Cost Records
Cost Records are not required to be maintained by the Company under Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, such accounts and records are not maintained.

Cost Audit

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 & 4 of The
Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company.




Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the
Board had appointed M/S. B S S & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake the
Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2023-24.

The Secretarial Audit Report in ‘Form MR-3’ for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024 is
annexed herewith marked as Annexure — D to this report.

Explanation or comments on qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers
made by the Auditors in their reports
There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.

Particulars of Employees
The information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable to the Company.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 are provided as per Annexure-B.

Risk Management
The Management of the Company has formed a risk management team to frame, implement and

monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The Board is responsible for reviewing the risk
management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Major risks identified by the businesses and
functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size of the Company and
nature of its business. These internal controls are continuously reviewed for effectiveness and are
augmented by written policies and guidelines. The internal controls of the company are designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the objectives:

- Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

- Adequacy of safeguard of assets; and

- Reliability of financial controls.

The integrity and reliability of the internal controls are achieved through clear policies and
procedures.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
has been constituted with following members:

Mr. P.Venkateswarlu, Director - Chairperson
Mr. S.Rajamouli, Director - Member
Mr. Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao, Director - Member

The Company has adopted a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the company. During the year under review, the Company has conducted various CSR
programs and also contributed to clean ganga project. The report on CSR activities for FY 2023-24 is
enclosed as Annexure-C.

During the year 2023-24, the CSR Committee met one time on 29/05/2023. Particulars relating to the
attendance at the CSR Committee meetings held during the year are given below:




Name of the Director Meetings held during the year Meetings attended
Mr.Venkateswarlu Potti - Chairperson 01 01
Mr. Raja Mouli Seerna - Member 01 01
Mr.Prasada Rao  Tiruveedhula-
01 01
Member

Disclosure of composition of Audit Committee
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies

(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Vigil Mechanism
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies

(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 are applicable to the Company and has
formulated Vigil Mechanism for employees of the company to report their genuine concerns.

Declaration given by Independent Directors
Appointment of Independent Directors is not applicable to the Company and Declaration of
Independent Directors under Section 149(6) of Companies Act not Applicable.

Company’s Policy relating to directors’ appointment, payment of remuneration and discharge
of their duties

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy relating to
appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Annual Return
Annual Return in Form MGT-7 is available on the company’s website and the link for the same is
www.rsbrothers.net.

Conservation of energy, research and development, technology absorption, foreign exchange

earnings and outgo
A. Energy Conservation: The measures taken for energy conservation are:

o Installed energy efficient LED lights and Variable frequency drives the stores.
e Adopted good maintenance practice to avoid energy losses and optimized energy
consumption.

B. Technology Absorption: The Information on Technology Absorption was not annexed as same
were not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows: Nil
Foreign Exchange outflow in terms of actual outflows: Nil

Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors under Section 143 (12) other than those which
are reportable to the Central Government

There were no frauds as reported by the Statutory Auditors under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 along with Rules made there-under other than those which are reportable to the
Central Government.

Secretarial Standards
The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards.




Company’s Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace

The Company prohibits any form of sexual harassment and any such incidence is immediately
investigated and appropriate action taken in the matter against the offending employee(s) based on the
nature and the seriousness of the offence. The Company has a policy on Prohibition, Prevention and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (the Policy) and matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under the “The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013 notified by
the Government of India vide Gazette Notification dated 23" April, 2013.

There was no case of sexual harassment reported during the year under review.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors herby confirms as
under:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the Company for that period;

¢) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Personnel
The relationship with the employees at different levels in the Company remained cordial throughout
the year. Your Directors place their appreciation for the contribution made by all the employees of the
Company.

The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the vear along with their status as at the end of the
financial year

During the year under review, Company has not made any application under The Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions
along with the reasons thereof

The requirement to disclose the details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time
of onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial
Institutions along with the reasons thereof is not applicable.
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

SD/- SD/-
Venkateswarlu Potti Raja Mouli Seerna
Place: Hyderabad Director Director

Date: 25/09/2024 DIN: 01430443 DIN: 01980976
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Annexure—A

Particulars of contracts / arrangements made with related parties

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 — AOC-2]

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain

arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the year ended March 31,

2024, which were not at arm's length basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties during the financial

year 2023-24.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25/09/2024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

SD/- SD/-
Venkateswarlu Potti Raja Mouli Seerna
Director Director
DIN: 01430443 DIN: 01980976
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Annexure-B
Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under
Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
(Amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Gross Nature of
remunerati Qualificat employment,
S. |Name of the|Date of | on ion & A Relationship  with | Last Desienati whether
No. | Employee Joining (in Experienc g¢ Director(s) Employment esignation | o ontractual or
Rupees e (yrs) otherwise
Lakhs)
Brother: Promoter,
I | P.Venkateswarlu | 2103200 | 20079 | UG& 40 | 65 |F-Satyanarayana Nil Director Executive
8 Son: Abhinay Director
Venkata Sai P
o 31.03.200 . . Promoter,
2 | S.Rajamouli 3 219.55 UG &40 | 63 | Son: S.Suresh Nil Director Executive
Director
31.03.200 Sons: . . Promoter,
3 | T.Prasada Rao 3 145.86 UG &40 | 64 | T.Keshav Gupta Nil Director Executive
and T.Rakesh Director
Graduatio Promoter,
. . 01.06.201 n/Bachelor Father: . . Executive
4 | PV Sai Abhinay 8 240 /Equivalen 30 P.Venkateswarlu Nil Director Director
t&6




Promoter,

S Suresh 24'07'201 240 PGI;M & 36 | Father: S.Rajamouli Nil Director Executive
Director
] Promoter,
T Keshav Gupta 01.06.201 240 PGDM & 35 Father: T.Prasada Nil Director Executive
8 9 Rao .
Director
Manager in
the
Husband:
P M L Kumari 04.04.202 180 UG & 4 53 | P.Satyanarayana Nil dep alftment 9f Contractual
0 Administratio
n and
Marketing

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25/09/2024

Venkateswarlu Potti

Director

DIN: 01430443

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

SD/-
Raja Mouli Seerna
Director
DIN: 01980976




Annexure - C

Annual Report on CSR Activities

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The Company strives to serve the society by setting the standard for quality and safe life. CSR
Policy aims to provide a dedicated approach to the development of community around us in the
areas of health care including preventive health care and sanitation, promoting education and
employment enhancing vocation skills, empowerment of women and rural areas development.
The CSR Committee acts in an advisory capacity to the Board with respect to policies and
strategies that affect your Company’s role as a socially responsible organization. The CSR
Committee ensures that the implementation and monitoring of the projects is in compliance with
the CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.

Composition of CSR Committee

Number of Number of meetings
Sl. Name of Director Designation / Nature of | meetings of CSR | of CSR Committee
No. Directorship Committee held | attended during the
during the year year
Venkateswarulu Chairman N FCSR
1 Potti Cor.nmltt.ee 1 1
(Executive Director)
Member of CSR
2 Rajamouli Seerna Committee 1 1
(Executive Director)
Tiruveedhula Member of CSR
3 Prasada Rao Cor.nmltt.ee ! !
(Executive Director)

Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.rsbrothers.net

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

As the Company is not having average CSR obligation of Rs.10 Crores or more in pursuance of
subsection (5) of section 135 of the Act, impact assessment is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs.67,25,42,828/-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:
Rs.1,34,50,857/-.

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial
years: Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 1,34,50,857/-.

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs.
1,35,16,587/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs.1,35,16,587/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:




Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year.

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VII as per second proviso
to section 135(5).

(in Rs.)

Amount.

Date of transfer.

Name of the
Fund

Amount.

Date of
transfer.

Rs.1,35,16,587/-

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any

SI. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
No.
(09) 2) (&)
Q) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub 1,34,50,857
section 5 of section 135
(i1) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,35,16,587
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 65,730
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any
) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)- Nil
(iv)]
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial
years:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Balance Amount
Amount Amount transferred to a
transferred in Fund as specified Amount
to unspent | Unspent | Amount under remaining
. CSR CSR Spent in Schedule VII as to be .
Preceding . Deficie
SL. . . Account Account the per spent in .
Financial ’ 7 q R ncy, if
No Year(s) und'er sub under.' Flnaanal second proviso to su.cceed}ng any
section (6) | subsection | Year (in subsection (5) of Financial
of Section (6) of Rs) section 135, Years
135 section if any (in Rs)
(in Rs.) 135 Amount | Date of
(in Rs.) (in Rs) | Transfer
1 | FY-1 - - - - - - -
FY-2 - - - - - - -
3 | FY3 - - - - - - -

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year: No




9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per subsection (5) of section 135: Not Applicable

*During the financial year 2023-24, the company has spent Rs.1,35,16,587/- towards Corporate
Social Responsibility as against the CSR obligation of Rs.1,34,50,587/-. Company has spent
excess amount of Rs.65,730/- during the financial year 2023-24.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

SD/- SD/-
Venkateswarlu Potti Raja Mouli Seerna
Place: Hyderabad Director Director

Date: 25/09/2024 DIN: 01430443 DIN: 01980976




Annexure - D
Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

M/s. R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited,
Door No:7-2-1740,

Opposite to Fire Station Office,

Main Road, Sanath Nagar,

Hyderabad, Telangana - 500018.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited (CIN:
U47510TG2008PTC058454) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i1) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings.

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)




(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

(d) The Securities Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations,
2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

Laws specially applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the
Management:

The other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company are:
i.  The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
ii.  Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;
iii.  Employers Liability Act, 1938;
iv.  Environment Protection Act, 1986 and other environmental laws;
V. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;
vi.  Maternity Benefits Act, 1961;
vii.  Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
Viil. Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881;
iX. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
X. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
xi.  Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable labour laws;

(1) Laws specially applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the
Management:

i.  Competition Act, 2002;
ii. Consumer Protection Act, 1986;
iii.  Sales of Goods Act, 1930




We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(1) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that on examination of the relevant documents and records and based on the
information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct
of the audit, and also on the review of compliance reports by respective department heads of the
Company, in our opinion, there exist adequate systems and processes and control mechanism in the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general laws.

We further report that that the compliances by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct
and indirect tax laws, have not been reviewed in this audit since the same is not within the scope of
our audit.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We further report that adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings
and agenda with detailed notes thereon were sent to all the directors at least seven days in advance
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications as may be
required on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, all the decisions of the
Board were without any dissent.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with its size and operations to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no other specific events / actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major bearing on the
Company’s affairs.

For B S S & Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-

B Sathish

Partner

ACS No.: A27885

Place: Hyderabad C P No.: 11809
Date: 06.09.2024 UDIN: A027885F001167540

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and Forms an
integral part of this report.




To,

Annexure-A

M/s. R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited,
Door No:7-2-1740,

Opposite to Fire Station Office,

Main Road, Sanath Nagar,

Hyderabad, Telangana - 500018.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe
that the process and practices, that we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company or of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For B S S & Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-

B Sathish

Partner

ACS No.: A27885

C P No.: 11809
UDIN:A027885F001167540

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 06.09.2024




O\ RCV&CO

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
R S BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of R S BROTHERS RETAIL
INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income). the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date,
and a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information ("
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“IND AS”) prescribed U/s.133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3 [st March 2024, and its
profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the  financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the  Financiul Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“/CA/™) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statenmeass

OFFICE : 402, 4th FLOOR, OWNERS PRIDE, PLOT NO.1717, ROAD NO.12, BANJARA HILLS, HYDERABAD - 500 034, TELANGANA.
TEL : 040-2338_ 2339 e-mail : rcvcoauditors@gmail.com



Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors™ Report. but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The accompanying  Financial Statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view ol the financial position. financial performance. total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible [or overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with standards on auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of uscrs taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the standards on auditing. we exercise professional
judgment ay aintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:




+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting {rom fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions.
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to  financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. " we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or. i such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the  financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the  [(inancial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves [air presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the

. o .D = o usD . .
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where appligs elated safeguards.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable to the company.

As required by Sectionl43(3) of the Act. based on our audit, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(a)

(c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and beliet were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
accompanying Financial Statements.

In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Financial Statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of'account of the company.

In our opinion. the Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Actl.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*
March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

We have also audited the Internal Financial controls with reference to  Financial
Statements of the Company as on 31% March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report of
even date attached hereto as Annexure B.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the limits
prescribed by Scction 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not
applicable to a Private Limited Company

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
wnh Rule 'l of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
ionand to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:



i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which impact its financial
position.

ii). The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31% March, 2024,

iii). There are no balances which are required to be transterred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31% March, 2024.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,

(v).

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of [unds) by the company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies). including loreign entities ("Intermediaries").
with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee. security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics:

(b)The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise. that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

(c)Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (A) and (B) above contain
any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention
of the provision of Section 123 of the Companies Act. 2013.




(vi). Based on our examination. which include test checks. the company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounting for the financial ended
March 31. 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (Edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further during the course of our audit, we did not come across any incidence
of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2024 is applicable from
Ist April 2024. reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit & Auditors)
Rules. 2014 on preservation of Audit trail as per the Statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024

ForRCV & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd No.017180S

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25.09.2024

(Ch. Raju)
Partner



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section

of our report of even date)

i. In respect of the Property. Plant and L:quipment of the Company:

(a) (i)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i1) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) The Company has formulated a programme of physical verification of all the fixed assets by
the management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. Accordingly, the physical
verification of the fixed assets has been carried out by management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noliced on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination of the registered sale deed / Transfer deed / conveyance deed
provided to us. we report that the title deeds comprising all the immovable properties of land
and buildings are held in the name of the Company as at the balance shect date.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records
examined by us, the Company has neither revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
nor its Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the
Order is not applicable

(e) According to the information and explanations given (o us. no proceedings have been initiated

or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and Rules made thereunder.

Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

ii. In respect of the inventories of the Company:

(a) Physical verification of inventories have been conducted by the management during the
year which, in our opinion, is at reasonable intervals; and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed
on verification between physical stock and book records were not 10% or more in

L cach class of inventories




(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores. in aggregate, at points of
time during the year. [rom banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assels. [n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us. the quarterly returns and statements comprising (stock  statements. book  debt-
statements. statements on ageing analysis of the debtors and Trade Payable) filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the unaudited

books ol account of the Company. of the respective quarters.

iii.  According to the information and explanations given to us. during the year the company has not
made investments in. provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans. secured or unsecured. to companies, firms. Limited Liability Partnerships

or any other partics, hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not given loans to
directors/ Lo a company in which directors are interested as per provisions of section 185 of the
Companies Act. 2013. According to the information and  explanations given to us.
the company has nol granted any loans or made investments or security to the persons specified
under Section 186 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185

and 186 of'the  Companics Act. 2013 in respect of providing Corporate Guarantee.

v Inour opinion and according to (he information and explanations given to us. the Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning ol Scctions 73 to 76 ot Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014, as amended. Therefore. the provisions of the clause (v) of

paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us. the company is not required to
maintain the cost records under section 148 (1) ol the Companies Act 2013.  Tlence reporting under

this clause is not applicable to the company

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us. in respect ol statutory dues:
(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues. including
Provident IFund. Employees™ State Insurance. Income Tax. Goods and Service Tax and other
material statutory dues applicable (o it with the appropriate authorities and there were no arrears

of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day ol the [inancial year concerned for a period of




(b) There are no dues of Income lax. Goods and Service Tax, cess which have nol been deposited as

on 31 March 2024 on account of disputes

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations of
the records of the Company. the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or payvment ol interest

thereon to any lender;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures. the Company is not declared willtul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

other lender.

¢)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the management,

terms loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and an overall examination of the
Balance Sheet of the Company. we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been

applied for long term purposes by the Company

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinations of
the records of the Company. the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on

account of or Lo meet the obligations of its subsidiarics, associates or joint ventures

) According to the information and explanations given (o us and on the basis ol our examinations of the
records of the company, the company has not taken any funds trom any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures on the pledge of securities

held in its subsidies, joint ventures or associate companies

x. a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not raised monies by way of initial public offer or further

public ofter including debt. [ience the provisions of clause (xa) ol paragraph 3 of the Order




b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company. the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year under review. Accordingly. clause 3(x)(b) of the

Order is not applicable

xi  a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view on
the Financial Statements and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management. we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has

been noticed or reported during the year;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 ol the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed

under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower complaints have

been received during the year by the company

xii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii)(a).(b) and (¢) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

Xiii In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in
compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act. 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details ol related  party transactions have been

disclosed in the financial statements elc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate

with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the ycar under audit. issucd to the Company

during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.




XV In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year

the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly. clauses 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable The
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the Regulations made by the

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly Clause 3(xvi)(c) & (d) of'the Order is not applicable.

xvil. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding

financial year

xviii. There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year. Accordingly Clause

3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix. According lo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the  financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention. which causes us 1o believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date ot balance sheet as and when they lall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is nol an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the Company as and

when they fall due.

(xx) The Provisions section 135 of the Act are applicable to the company. There are no unspent amounts
on on-going projects. The details of the amounts spent as per the provisions of the Act are given

vide note No.41.




(xxi) The financial statement of the company is standalone financials so the requirement of reporting

under this clause (XX1) of the order is not applicable.

FOR RCV & CO,,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN. NO.017180S

[, Ao

( CH RAJU)
PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP NO.204732

PLACE: HYDERABAD

DATE :25.09.2024




“ANNEXURE - B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF R S BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 ol Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of R S BROTHERS RETAIL
INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the tinancial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components
of internal controls stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequale internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efticient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ~Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing. issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with cthical requircments and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal [inancial controls over [inancial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.




Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls svstem over linancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and lesting and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement ol the [nancial statements. whether due to fraud or crror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability ol financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions ol the assets of the company:

(2)  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations

of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's asscts that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override ol controls, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections ol any

evaluation of the internal [inancial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the

risk that the internal linancial control over linancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes




Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024. bascd on the financial reporting criteria cstablished by the company
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR RCV & CO,,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN. NO.0171808

&1 ) Qe«//
( CH RAJU)

PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP NO.204732

PLACE: HYDERABAD
DATE :25.09.2024




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
(CIN : U17200TG2008PTC58454)
Balance sheet as At 31st March 2024
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at o
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(2) Property, plant and equipment 3 31.903.87 23,319.67 22,217.48
(b) Right-of-use assets 4 41,627.92 38,712.94 33,831.13
(c) Intangible assets 5 214.34 143.13 133.67
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other financial assets 6 12,976.71 7,113.66 4,376.30
(¢) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 2,031.85 2,126.66 2,750.36
Total non-current assets (A) 88,754.69 71,416.06 63,308.94
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 51,471.51 44,435.41 32,635.03
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 2,837.29 3,240.50 2,297.01
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 3,420.89 1,452.58 1,552.72
(iii) Other bank balances - - -
(iv) Other financial assets 6 2,301.75 1,000.62 1,274.93
(c) Other current assets 11 1,506.49 837.77 1,167.48
Total current assets (B) 61,537.92 50,966.87 38,927.17
Total assets (A+B) 150,292.61 122,382.93 102,236.11
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 811.00 811.00 811.00
(b) Other equity 13 34.170.50 28,703.29 23,035.72
Total equity (A) 34,981.50 29,514.29 23,846.72
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 11,163.15 3,108.30 4,536.12
(ii) Lease liabilities 15 38,602.77 34,760.71 30,424.57
(ii) Other financial liabilities 16 108.30 55.29 32425
(b) Provisions 17 1,878.82 1,467.88 1,202.76
Total non-current liabilities (B) 51,753.05 39,392.18 36,487.70
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 14,409.43 9,508.58 11,152.83
(ii) Lease liabilities 15 4,395.19 3,791.00 3,214.93
(iii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and
small enterprises 18 17,898.08 21,572.10 9,489.95
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro and small enterprises 18 20,510.82 14,120.88 13,875.05
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 4,102.24 3,047.09 2,701.91
(b) Other current liabilities 19 1,622.85 837.80 483.19
(c) Provisions 17 167.69 242.82 176.70
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 20 451.77 356.20 807.13
Total current liabilities (C) 63,558.06 53,476.46 41,901.69
Total equity and liabilities (A+B+C) 150,292.61 122,382.93 102,236.11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
in terms of our report of even date
Jor RCV & Co For and on behalf of the Board of directors

Chartered Accountants
a \M

Firm Registration No. : 017180S
«
P. Venkateswarlu

(A Qo

S Rijamouli
Director

Ch Raju

Partner

Membership No. 204732
UDIN NO: 24204732BKAQMW6651
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25/09/2024 Date: 25/09/2024 Date: 25/09/2024




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
(CIN : U17200TG2008PTC58454)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs except share data or unless otherwise stated)

S No Particular Not For the Year ended For the Year ended
e iy 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I |Revenue from operations 21 245,799.12 212,671.89
II  [Other income 22 2,771.48 2,578.64
III |Total income (I+II) 248,570.60 215,250.53
IV |Expenses
Purchases of stock in trade 23 165,722.03 155,240.93
Changes of inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade 24 (7,036.09) (11,800.39)
Employee benefits expense 25 28,150.00 22,057.28
Finance costs 26 6,951.93 5,604.84
Depreciation and amortization expenses 27 11,814.07 9,674.99
Other expenses 28 32,942.24 25,028.92
Total expenses (IV) 238,544.18 205,806.57
V  |Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I- IV) 10,026.42 9,443.96
VI |[Exceptional items
VII |Profit/(loss) before tax (V+VI) 10,026.42 9,443.96
Tax expenses
(1) Current tax 3,529.52 3,266.76
(2) Deferred tax 42.03 594.99
(3) Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 1,145.23 -
VIII |Profit/(Loss) for the year (after tax) 5,309.64 5,582.21
IX |Other comprehensive income (OCI)
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 209.67 114.08
Income tax impact on above item (52.77) (28.71)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period, net of tax (IX) 156.90 85.37
X |Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (VIII+IX) 5,466.54 5,667.58
Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic earnings per equity share of Rs.10/- each 65.47 68.83
(2) Diluted earnings per equity share of Rs.10/-each 65.47 68.83

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

in terms of our report of even date
for RCV & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 017180S
Ch Raju

Partner

Membership No. 204732
UDIN NO: 24204732BKAQMW6651

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25/09/2024

For and on behalf of the Board of directors

K e seNs—

P. Venkateswarlu

Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25/09/2024

/L,/L/\_/\_/"\
S.Rajsmmm_

Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25/09/2024



R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the period ending 31st March 2024
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs except share data or unless otherwise stated)

For the Year ended For the Year ended

fiticalars 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
A, Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax 10,026.42 9,443.96
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expenses 11,814.07 9,674.99
Gain on sale of property,plant and equipment - (566.69)
Finance costs 6,951.93 5,604.84
Gain on de recognition of Right of use assets (631.23) (408.72)
Interest income of finance lease receivable (682.72) (564.49)
Loyalty Rewards written off 0.67 -
Interest income (143.79) (35.10)
Operating profit before working capital changes 27,335.35 23,148.77
Changes in Working Capital
Inventories (7,036.09) (11,800.39)
Trade receivables 403.21 (943.49)
Other current assets (668.72) 329.72
Other current financial assets 971.29) 182.62
Other non-current financial assets (717.72) (2,225.40)
Trade payables 2,715.92 12,327.98
Provisions 545.49 445.31
Other financial liabilities 1,108.16 76.21
Other current liabilities 785.05 354.61
(3,835.94) (1,252.83)
Cash generated from operations before tax 23,499.41 21,895.94
Taxes paid (4,579.18) (3.717.69)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 18,920.23 18,178.25
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital advances
and capital creditors (14,370.17) (6,431.57)
Redemption/(deposit) of bank deposits (having original maturity
of more than three months) (4,462.61) 52.53
(Loans granted) to/repayment from related and other parties (329.89) 91.69
Interest income 143.79 35.10
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (19,018.88) (6,252.24)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from current borrowings, net 3,554.68 -
Repayment of current borrowings - (1,567.81)
Proceeds from non current borrowings, net 9,401.02 -
Repayment of non current borrowings, net - (1,504.25)
Payment of prinicpal portion of lease liabilities (3,936.81) (3,349.26)
Finance costs (6,951.93) (5,604.84)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 2,066.96 (12,026.15)
Net Inerease/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,968.31 (100.14)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,452.58 1,552.72
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,420.89 1,452.58

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year For the Year ended For the Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(a) Balances with banks 2,316.90 1,154.19
(b) Cash in hand 1,103.98 298.39
3,420.89 1,452.58
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
in terms of our report of even date
Jor RCV & Co For and on behalf of the Board of directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 017180

Ch Raju f
Partner ‘\';-.\
Membership No. 204732 .7 .
UDIN NO: 24204732BKAQMWG6651 20 |

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place; Hyderabad
Date: 25/09/2024 Date: 25/09/2024 Date: 25/09/2024

WOERY | ok P. VenkatesH 581
{ . - a2k
Director
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R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ending 31st March 2024
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs except share data or unless otherwise stated)

4  Right-of-use assets
Gross carrying amount

Particulars Leasehold Building
Balance as at 1 April 2021 26,138.21
Additions for the year 9,834.07
Disposals for the year -
Balance as at 1 April 2022 33,831.13
Additions for the year 10,563.45
Disposals for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 44,394.58
Additions for the year 9,316.40
Disposals for the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 53,710.98

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2021 -

Depreciation for the year 4,367.65
Balance as at 1 April 2022 -

Depreciation for the year 5,681.63
Balance as at 31 March 2023 5,681.633
Depreciation for the year 6,401.42
Balance as at 31 March 2024 12,083.054

Net carrying amount

As at 1 April 2021 26,138.21
As at 1 April 2022 33,831.13
As at 31 March 2023 38,712.94
As at 31 March 2024 41,627.92

S Intangible assets

Particulars Software Total

Gross Block

Balance as at 1 April 2021 142.22 142.22
Additions 58.97 58.97
Disposals for the year - -
Balance as at 1 April 2022 133.67 133.67
Additions 75.82 75.82
Disposals for the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 209.49 209.49
Additions 164.58 164.58
Disposals for the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 374.07 374.07

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2021 - -

Amortisation for the year 67.52 67.52
Accumulated amortisation on Disposals - -
Balance as at 1 April 2022 - -
Amortisation for the year 66.36 66.36
Accumulated amortisation on Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 66.36 66.36
Amortisation for the year 93.37 93.37
Accumulated amortisation on Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 159.73 159.73
Net Block

As at 1 April 2021 14222 142.22
As at 1 April 2022 133.67 133.67
As at 31 March 2023 143.13 143.13
As at 31 March 2024 214.34 214.34

The company has elected to use the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all its property plant
equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of adoption i.e. 1 April 2022.




R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ending 31st March 2024

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs except share data or unless otherwise stated)

6 Other financial assets

Particulars

Non current

Rental deposits

In term deposit accounts with remaining maturity of more than 12 months
Finance lease receivables (net)

Security deposits

Total

Current

Loans to employees
Rent receivables
Credit card receivables
Total

7  Deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars
Deferred tax assets (net)
Total

8 Inventories
Particulars
Textiles and garments
Total

9  Trade receivables
Particulars

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured
Less: Allowance against expected credit loss
Total

Trade receivables ageing:

Undisputed outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
(i) Not due

(ii) Less than 6 months

(iii) 6 months - 1 year

(iv) 1 - 2 years

(v) 2 -3 years

(vi) More than 3 years

10  Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

a) Balance with banks
b) Cash on hand
Total

Cash and cash equivalent balances don’t include any amounts which are not available for use by the Company.

11  Other current assets
Particulars

Balances with statutory authons i
Prepaid expenses
Total

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
4,384.62 3,941.67 1,495.29
4,469.16 6.55 59.08
3,600.63 2,769.13 2,455.90
522.31 396.30 366.03
12,976.71 7,113.66 4,376.30
1,160.30 830.41 922.11
- - 51.70
1,141.45 170.21 301.13
2,301.75 1,000.62 1,274.93
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
2,031.85 2,126.66 2,750.36
2,031.85 2,126.66 2,750.36
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
51.471.51 44,435.41 32.,635.03
51,471.51 44,435.41 32,635.03
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
2,837.29 3,240.50 2,297.01
2.837.29 3,240.50 2,297.01
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
2,837.29 3,240.50 2,293.73
- - 3.28
2,837.29 3,240.50 2,297.01
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
2,316.90 1,154.19 958.24
1,103.98 298.39 594.49
3,420.89 1,452.58 1,552.72
As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
1,172.01 650.63 1,038.65
334.48 187.14 128.84
1,506.49 837.77 1,167.48
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12 Share capital

Particulars

Equity share capital:
Authorised share capital:

(10,00,00,000 number of equity shares of Rs 10/- each as at 31.03.2024)
(90,00,000 number of equity shares of Rs 10/- each as at 31.03.2023)

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital:
81,10,000 number of equity shares of Rs 10/- each
(81,10,000 number of equity shares of Rs 10/- each)

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at beginning and the end of the financial year

Particulars

At the beginning of the year
Add: Issue of shares during the year
Less: Buy back of shares during the year

31?\2:;]1 As at As at
2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
10,000.00 900.00 900.00
811.00 811.00 811.00
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 1 April 2022
Number of
Number of shares Amount Amount Number of shares Amount
shares
8,110,000 811.00 8,110,000 811.00 8,110,000 811.00
8,110,000 811.00 8,110,000 811.00 8,110,000 811.00

Outstanding at the end of the year

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian
Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is suject to the approval of the share holdes in the ensuing general meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no dividend is declared by the Board of Directors (Previous Year : NIL)

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the Shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the C

pany

Name of the share holder

As at 31 March 2024

No of shares

% of total shares

As at 31 March 2023

No of shares

% of total shares

As at 1 April 2022

No of shares

% of total shares

P Venkateswarulu 729,900 9.00% 2,433,000 30.00% 2,433,000 30.00%
S Rajamouli 729,900 9.00% 1,622,000 20.00% 1,622,000 20.00%
P M L Kumari 1,622,000 20.00% 1,622,000 20.00% 1,622,000 20.00%
T Prasada Rao 648,800 8.00% 1,622,000 20.00% 1,622,000 20.00%
G Lalitha 811,000 10.00% 811,000 10.00% 811,000 10.00%
P V L Sindhu 405,500 5.00%
P V L Spandana 405,500 5.00%
P V S Abhinay 729,900 9.00%
S Suresh 729,900 9.00%
T Rakesh 486,600 6.00%
T Keshav Gupta 486,600 6.00%

7,785,600 96.00% 8,110,000 100.00% 8,110,000 100.00%
(d) Details of shares held by promoters

As at 31 March 2024 % of change during As at 31st March 2023 As at 1 April 2022
Name of the promoter
No of shares % of total shares the year No of shares % of total shares No of shares

P Venkateswarulu 729,900 9.00% -21.00% 2,433,000 30.00% 2,433,000
S Rajamouli 729,900 9.00% -11.00% 1,622,000 20.00% 1,622,000
P M L Kumari 1,622,000 20.00% 0.00% 1,622,000 20.00% 1,622,000
T Prasada Rao 648,800 8.00% -12.00% 1,622,000 20.00% 1,622,000
G Lalitha 811,000 10.00% 0.00% 811,000 10.00% 811,000

4,541,600 56.00% -44.00% 8,110,000 100.00% 8,110,000
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A Equity share capital

Particulars Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 8,110,000 811.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 1 April 2022 8,110,000 811.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 8,110,000 811.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 8,110,000 811.00
Other equity
Reserves and surplus Items of OCI

Re-measurement

Particulars Retained gains/ (losses) on Total
earnings defined benefit plans,  other equity
net of tax
Balance as at 1 April 2021 19,017.32 - 19,017.32
Profit for the year 9,255.80 - 9,255.80
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans net of tax - - -
Balance as at 1 April 2022 23,035.72 - 23,035.72
Profit for the year 5,582.21 - 5,582.21
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans net of tax - 85.37 85.37
Balance as at 31 March 2023 28,617.93 85.37 28,703.29
Profit for the year 5,309.64 5,309.64
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans net of tax - 156.90 156.90
Loyalty rewards written off 0.67 - 0.67
Balance as at 31 March 2024 33,928.23 242,27 34,170.50

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

Nature and purpose of reserves

Retained earnings

The balance in the retained earnings primarily represents the profits after payment of dividend and transfer to reserves, if any.

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans,net of tax

Remeasurements of the net defi ned benefits plan reserve comprises the cumulative net gains/ losses on actuarial valuation of post-
employment obligations.
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Other equity
Particul As at As at As at
arfiewtars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Retained earnings
Opening balance 28,617.93 23,035.72 19,017.32
Add : Profit/(loss) for the year 5,309.64 5,582.21 4,743.13
Add: Adjustments on account of transition to Ind AS - - -724.74
Add:Loyalty rewards written off in the books (0.67) - -
At the end of the year 33,928.23 28,617.93 23,035.72
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans net of tax
Opening balance 85.37 - -
Add: For the year 156.90 85.37 -
At the end of the year 242.27 85.37 -
Total other equity 34,170.50 28,703.29 23,035.72
Borrowings
Non current
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Secured borrowings
Term Loans from banks 10,010.97 1,564.09 4,115.49
Loans from non banking financial institutions 1,152.18 1,544.21 420.62
11,163.15 3,108.30 4,536.12
Current
Working capital loans from banks 11,100.64 7,443.25 7,390.78
Current maturities of non current borrowings 3,181.32 1,835.15 1,911.58
Unsecured loans from related parties 127.48 230.18 1,850.46
14,409.43 9,508.58 11,152.83

Foot note

Details of nature of security and terms of repayment for non current and current borrowings -

A. SBI Bank Cash Credit and Term Loan: The above loan from Bank includes, Cash Credit and Term Loan from SBI Bank is secured Primary
and collecteral securities as detailed below. Cash Credit and WCL Loan sanctioned for Rs. 75 Crores. The GECL Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 12.50
Crores and repayable in 48 Quarterly installments of Rs. 25,91,770 commencing from 01/02/2024 and Interest Rate 9.30% PA.

Collateral Security : Exclusive first charge by way of mortgage of immovable properties/ assets listed below:

A.i). 850 sq.yds of land and building thereon bearing H No 4-1-372,4-1-373,4-1-374,4-1-382 and 4-1-383 situated at Abids,
Hyderabad belonging to Sri Venkateswara Enterprises represented by Shri. P Venkateswarlu, Shri. S Raja Mouli, Shri. P
Satyanarayana, Shri. T Prasada Rao, Smt. P V Sujatha and Smt. S Suvarna (Holding 95 sq. yds each), Smt. P M L Kumari and Smt. T V S
Padmavathi (Holding 75 sq. yds each) Shri. P. Shri. Venkateswarlu (HUF) and Shri. S.Rajamouli (HUF) (Holding 65 Sq. yds each) Total
Extent: 850 sq yds.

A.ii). Building bearing MCH Nos. 4-1-372,373 and 374 known as Das Estate, Abids, Hyderabad 500001 with built up area of 960 Sq. ft. with
undivided share of land admeasuring 42.36 Sq. yds. situated at Abids, Hyderabad belonging to Shri P. Venkateswarlu s/o
BapaRao, Shri S. Raja Mouli s/o Vishwanatham, Shri. T.PrasadRao s/o Krishna Murthy and Shri. P. Satyanarayana s/o BapaRao.

A. jii). Extension of EM of Plot no. 307 with building thereon situated at Jubilee Hills Cooperative building layout, Sy. No. 403/1, New 120,
Shaikpet Village at Sy no 102/1, Hakimpet, Golconda, Hyderabad standing in the name of Shri § Rajamouli. admeasuring 1194 Sq. Yards.

A.iv). First Charge on unencumbered fixed assets of the company. The below mentioned properties are offered as collateral securities for credit
facilitied santioned to M/s. R S Brothers Jewellers Private Ltd,

1) Plot bearing No.15 admeasuring 3300.88 Sq. yards situated at Survey No.267/1 and 267/2, Thokatta Village, Tirumalgiri Mandal, Bowenpally,
Secunderabad Cantonment, Secunderbad standing in the name of R S. Brothers Retail India Private Limited

) Commerical Plot bearing Survey No. LUX 1 A B C D, MNO. 7-2-LUX-1, situated at LUX, A B C D M No. 7-2-LUX-1, Industrial Estate, Sanath
, Hyderabad admeasuring 7720 Sq. yards, standing in the name of R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited

). Cash collateral in form of Fixed Deposits to the tune of Rs. 8 Crores in the nam of the Company Lien will be marked on the Fixed Deposit
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B. ICICI Bank Working Capital and Term Loan: The above loan from Bank includes, Cash Credit and Term Loan from ICICI Bank is secured
Primary and collecteral securities as detailed below. Cash Credit and WCL Loan sanctioned for Rs. 5.00 Crores. The Term Loan Sanctioned Rs.
50.00 Crores and repayable in 60 Monthly installments of Rs. 83,33,333 commencing from 31/12/2023 and Interest Rate 9.20% PA.

Collateral Security : Exclusive charge on cash collateral in form of fixed deposits with ICICI Bank with 0.2 x cover

C. CANARA Bank Working Capital and Term Loan: The above loan from Bank includes, Cash Credit and Term Loan from CANARA Bank is
secured Primary and collecteral securities as detailed below. Working Capital sanctioned for Rs. 40.00 Crores. The Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 45.00
Crores and repayable in 48 Monthly installments of Rs. 93,75,000 commencing from 30/06/2024 and Interest Rate 8.70% PA.

Primary Security : 1. First pari pasu charge under MBA Current Assets both present and future source stock statement dated 30.06.2023.
2. Exclusive charge by way of Hypothecation Showcases, Furniture & Fixtures and other fixed assets of 8 showrooms financed by us.
Collateral Secuirty for Working Capital and Term Loan : Other Deposits 35%

D. HDFC Bank Cash Credit : The above loan from Barnk includes, Cash Credit is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The Cash Credit
Sanctioned Rs. 15.00 Crores commencing from 19/06/2023 and Interest Rate 7.95

Primary Security: «  Current Assets: First Pari Passu Charge on Current assets of Company both Present and Future.

* Commercial Property: Commercial property in the name of Mr.Potti Venkateswarlu, Mr.Seema Rajamouli, Mrs. Malathi Lakshmi Kumari
,Mr. Potti &Mr. Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao with address :Unit No. 2, 3, 4, 6, Ground Floor, Unit No. 1 & 2, 1st Floor, Part of Unit No.1 & Part of
Unit No.2 2nd Floor, Imperial Towers, GHMC No. 7-1-617/A,615 and 616, Sy No. 238 Part and 242 Part, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana
500082.

* Personal Guarantors: Mr. Venkateswarlu Potti, Mr. Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao, Mr.Seerna Raja Mouli, Mrs Malathi Lakshmi Kumari.

E. HDFC Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes,Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The Term
Loan Sanctioned Rs. 31.00 Crores commencing from 19/06/2021 and Interest Rate 7.20

Primary Security: Movable Fixed Assets: First Pari Passu Charge on Current assets of

Company both Present and Future and Exclusive Charge on entire movable fixed assets purchased out of our Term Loan. Commercial
Property: Commercial property in llie name of Mr.Potti Venkateswarlu, Mr.Seerna Rajamouli, Mrs. Marathi Lakshmi Kumari , Mr. Potti &Mr.
Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao with address :Unit No. 2, 3, 4, 6, Ground Floor, Unit No. 1 & 2, 1st Floor, Part of Unit No.1 & Part of Unit No.2 2nd
Floor, Imperial Towers, GHMC No. 7-1-617/A,615 and 616, Sy No.238Pa:tand242Pafi, Ameerpet Hyderabad, Teangana50008Z Personal
Guarantors: Mr. Venkateswarlu Potti, Mr. Tiruveedhula Prasada Rao, Mr.Seema Raja Mouli, Mrs Malathi Lakshmi Kumari.

F. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below.
The Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 12.00 Crores commencing from 30/06/2017 and Interest Rate 9.00

Primary Security: Commercial Property: Purchase of Commercial property in llie name of M/s. R.S.Brothers Retail India Private Limited
under Registered Sale Deed Document No. 4134 /2017 Regd. at SRO at Saroor Nagar of GHMC No. 11-131428/12,11-13-1428/13 and 11-13-
1428/14 on Plot Nos.8,9 and 10, in Survey no. 7/C, Ward No.11, Block No.13 situated at NH-9, of MARGADARSHI COLONY OF SAROOR
NAGAR VILLAGE AND REVENUE MANDAL, Ranga Reddy Distrcit, Under GHMC, L.B.Nagar Circle, Telangana State.

G. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below.
The Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 10.00 Crores commencing from 30/07/2017 and Interest Rate 9.50

Primary Security: Commercial Property: Purchase of Commercial property in llie name of M/s. R.S Brothers Retail India Private Limited
under Registered Sale Deed Document No. 4134 /2017 Regd. at SRO at Saroor Nagar of GHMC No. 11-131428/12,11-13-1428/13 and 11-13-
1428/14 on Plot Nos.8,9 and 10, in Survey no. 7/C, Ward No.11, Block No.13 situated at NH-9, of MARGADARSHI COLONY OF SAROOR
NAGAR VILLAGE AND REVENUE MANDAL, Ranga Reddy Distrcit, Under GHMC, L.B.Nagar Circle, Telangana State.

H. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below.
The Term Loan Sanctioned Rs. 25.00 Crores, but released for Rs. 15.00 Crores, commencing from 07/01/2020 and Interest Rate 9.50

iment No. 4134 /2017 Regd. at SRO at Saroor Nagar of GHMC No. 11-131428/12,11-13-1428/13 and 11-13-1428/14 on Plot Nos.8,9 and 10,
rvey no. 7/C, Ward No.11, Block No.13 situated at NH-9, of MARGADARSHI COLONY OF SAROOR NAGAR VILLAGE AND
ENUE MANDAL, Ranga Reddy Distrcit, Under GHMC, L.B.Nagar Circle, Telangana State.
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Primary Security: Purchase of Commercial Land in Ilie name of M/s. R.S Brothers Retail India Private Limited under Registered Sale Deed
Document No. 4134 /2017 Regd. at SRO at Saroor Nagar of GHMC No. 11-131428/12,11-13-1428/13 and 11-13-1428/14 on Plot Nos.8,9 and 10, in
Survey no. 7/C, Ward No.11, Block No.13 situated at NH-9, of MARGADARSHI COLONY OF SAROOR NAGAR VILLAGE AND REVENUE
MANDAL, Ranga Reddy Distrcit, Under GHMC, L.B.Nagar Circle, Telangana State.

L. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes,Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The Term
Loan Sanctioned Rs. 22.00 Crores, commencing from 26/05/2023 and Interest Rate 9.125

Primary Security: Purchase of Commercial Space in 201 & 203 Ground Floor, 302 & 304 I Floor & 501 in Il Floor GHMC No. 11-13-1428/12,11-13-
1428/13 and 11-13-1428/14 on Plot Nos.8,9 and 10, in Survey no. 7/C, Ward No.11, Block No.13 situated at NH-9, of MARGADARSHI COLONY OF
SAROOR NAGAR VILLAGE AND REVENUE MANDAL, Ranga Reddy Distrcit, Under GHMC, L.B.Nagar Circle, Telangana State.

J. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below, The Term
Loan Sanctioned Rs. 7.00 Crores, commencing from 15/08/2023 and Interest Rate 8.86

K. Kotak Mahindra Bank Term Loan : The above Term Loan from Bank includes, Term Loan is secured Primary securities as detailed below. The Term
Loan Sanctioned Rs. 2.00 Crores, commencing from 21/07/2023 and Interest Rate 10.17

L. HDFC Car Loans: The Above loan from Bank includes, Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicles Carrying a value of Rs. 1636.72
Lakhs. The Principle is repayables as follows as mentioned below. Total Loans sanctioned Rs. 12,15,41,193 for 42 Loans and Total of EMI 'S 2758063 of
42 Diffrent EMI's. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year. Individual Loan wise Details mentioned below.

L. i) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 24.13 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 07/09/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 21,01,000 and EMI 65794. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. ii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 28.28 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 07/09/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 24,00,000 and EMI 75157. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. iii} Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 19.84 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 05/01/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 17,00,000 and EMI 52814, There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. iv) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 20.77 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/03/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 15,00,000 and EMI 30272. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. v) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 20.67 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 05/04/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 15,00,000 and EMI 30272. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. vi) Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicles Carrying a value of Rs. 55,75 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 37 Months commencing
from 05/09/2021. Loan sanctioned Rs. 49,80,000 for 4 Vehicles and EMI 150640 (37660 of 4) . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest
during the year.

L. vii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 20.67 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/07/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 20,15,000 and EMI 40715. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. viii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 21.06 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 39 Months commencing
from 05/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 17,67,000 and EMI 51726. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year,

L. ix) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 20.34 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 05/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 17,13,500 and EMI 34990, There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. x) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 15.32 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 05/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 12,61,000 and EMI 25659. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xi) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs.23,83 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 19,64,365 and EMI 39971. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.
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L. xii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 21.06 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in Months 60 commencing
from 07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs.11,10,143 and EMI 22669. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xiii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bark is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 22.89 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 19,14,196 and EMI 39088. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xiv) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 23.59 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 19,14,196 and EMI 39088. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xv) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 21.18 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 15,12,200 and EMI 30879. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xvi) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 11.62 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 9,09,150 and EMI 18565. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xvii) Vehicle Loans from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicles Carrying a value of Rs. 59.18 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 37 Months
commencing from 10/10/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 55,00,000 for 4 Vehicles and EMI 168040 (42010 of 4) . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan

and Interest during the year.
L. xviii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 11.41 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs.9,09,150 and EMI 18565. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xix) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 11.61 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs.9,09,150 and EMI 18565. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xx) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 18.99 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs.15,58,000 and EMI 31813. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxi) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 8.60 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 05/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 7,08,000 and EMI 14458, There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 23.83 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 05/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 19,14,000 and EMI 39084. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxiii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 14.57 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 11,10,000 and EMI 22667. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxiv) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 14.22 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 11,10,143 and EMI 22669. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxv) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 6.96 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 05/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 5,57,000 and EMI 11374, There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxvi) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 23.30 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs.15,12,000 and EMI 30767 . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxvii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 25.84 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 07/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 19,65,000 and EMI 39984 . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxviii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 11.62 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
encing from 07/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 9,10,000 and EMI 18561. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.
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0. KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED Car Loans: The Above loan from Bank includes, Vehicle Loans from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is
secured by Vehicles Carrying a value of Rs. 959.27 Lakhs. The Principle is repayables as follows as mentioned below. Total Loans sanctioned Rs.
8,85,45,500 for 8 Loans and Total of EMI 'S 2431325 of 8 Diffrent EMI's. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.
Individual Loan wise Details mentioned below.

0. i} Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 37.12 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60
Months commencing from 01/03/2023. Loan sanctioned Rs. 3,19,00,000 and EMI 652355. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during
the year.

0. ii) Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 23.16 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36
Months commencing from 05/10/2023. Loan sanctioned Rs. 21,50,000 and EMI 68327. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the
year.

0. iii) Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 17.29 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60
Months commencing from 01/11/2023. Loan sanctioned Rs. 10,57,000 and EMI 21954. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the
year.

0. iv) Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 31.59 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60
Months commencing from 05/02/2024. Loan sanctioned Rs. 29,78,500 and EMI 62250. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the
year.

0. v) Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 150.00 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36
Months commencing from 01/03/2024. Loan sanctioned Rs. 1,50,00,000 and EMI 497850. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during
the year.

0. vi) Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 129.15 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36
Months commencing from 05/03/2024. Loan sanctioned Rs. 1,25,00,000 and EMI 398250. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during
the year,

O. vii) Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 200.03 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36
Months commencing from 06/03/2024. Loan sanctioned Rs. 1,95,00,000 and EMI 619515. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during
the year.

O. viii) Vehicle Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 36.83 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36
Months commencing from 01/04/2024. Loan sanctioned Rs. 34,60,000 and EMI 110824. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the

year.

lease liabilities
Non current

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Lease liabilities 38,602.77 34,760.71 30,424.57
Total 38,602.77 34,760.71 30,424.57
Current
Lease liabilities 4,395.19 3,791.00 3,214.93
Total 4,395.19 3,791.00 3,214.93
42,997.96 38,551.71 33,639.50
Other financial liabilities
Non current
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Advances received from tenants 108.30 55.29 324.25
108.30 55.29 324.25
Current
Creditors for expenses 4,102.24 3,047.09 2,701.91
4,102.24 3,047.09 2,701.91
Provisions
Non current
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Provision for gratuity 1.878.82 1,467.88 1,202.76
1,878.82 1,467.88 1,202.76
Current
Provision for gratuity 167.69 242.82 176.70
167.69 242.82 176.70
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L. xxix) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 10.70 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 07/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 7,39,000 and EMI 15073 . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxx) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 26.21 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 07/10/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 19,65,000 and EMI 39984 . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxxi) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Barik is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 21.92 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/11/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 10,60,000 and EMI 21569 . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxxii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 7.99 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/11/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 5,08,000 and EMI 10361 . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year,

L. xxxiii) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 11.62 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/11/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 9,10,000 and EMI 18561 . There is nio defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxxiv) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 48.96 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/11/2022 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 40,25,000 and EMI 81420. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxxv) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 11.62 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months
commencing from 05/01/2023 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 9,10,000 and EMI 18561 . There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

L. xxxvi) Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 891,07 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 55 months
commencing from 07/01/2023. Loan sanctioned Rs.6,25,00,000 and EMI 1368571. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

M. AXIS Bank Car Loan: The Above loan from Bank includes, Vehicle Loan from Axis Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 892.01
Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing from 01/01/2020. Loan sanctioned Rs. 7,50,00,000 and EMI 1551786. There is no defaualt in
Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

N. ICICT Bank Car Loans: The Above loan from Bank includes, Vehicle Loans from ICICI Bank is secured by Vehicles Carrying a value of Rs, 178.20
Lakhs. The Principle is repayables as follows as mentioned below. Total Loans sanctioned Rs. 1,65,00,000 for 6 Loans and Total of EMI'S 410663 of 6
Diffrent EMI's. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year. Individual Loan wise Details mentioned below.

N. i) Vehicle Loan from ICICI Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 92.30 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 48 Months commencing
from 05/09/2022. Loan sanctioned Rs. 89,00,000 and EMI 218272, There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

N. ii) Vehicle Loan from ICICI Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 20.29 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 61 Months commencing
from 10/04/2023 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 20,00,000 and EMI 41348. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

N. iii) Vehicle Loan from ICICI Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 10.27 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 10/06/2023. Loan sanctioned Rs.10,00,000 and EMI 20985. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

N. iv) Vehicle Loan from ICICI Bark is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 12.06 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 10/08/2023 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 8,00,000 and EMI 16863. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

N. v) Vehicle Loan from ICICI Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 12.06 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 60 Months commencing
from 10/08/2023 . Loan sanctioned Rs. 8,00,000 and EMI 16863. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.

N. vi) Vehicle Loan from ICICI Bank is secured by Vehicle Carrying a value of Rs. 31.22 Lakhs. The Principle is repayable in 36 Months commencing
from 10/11/2023. Loan sanctioned Rs. 30,00,000 and EMI 96332. There is no defaualt in Repayment of loan and Interest during the year.
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Trade payables

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises (MSME) 17,898.08 21,572.10 9,489.95
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises (Others) 20,510.82 14,120.88 13,875.05
Total 38,408.90 35,692.98 23,365.00
Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024
Undisputed
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment MSME Others Total
Less than 1 year 17,898.08 20,510.82 38,408.90
1-2 years - - -
2-3 years - - -
More than 3 years - - -
17,898.08 20,510.82 38,408.90
Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2023
Undisputed
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment MSME Others Total
Less than 1 year 21,572.10 13,405.00 34,977.10
1-2 years - 715.88 715.88
2-3 years - - -
More than 3 years - - -
21,572.10 14,120.88 35,692.98
Trade payables ageing schedule as on 1 April 2022
Undisputed
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment MSME Others Total
Less than ! year 9,489.95 13,104.58 22,594.53
1-2 years - 77047 770.47
2-3 years - B -
More than 3 years - - -
9,489.95 13,875.05 23,365.00

The information as required to be disclosed Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (Act) is
as given below and the information mentioned in Balance Sheet. Trade Payables dues to Micro and Small Enterprises, has been determined on the basis of

information available with the Company and relied on by the auditors:

Particulars —_ St
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

i) Principal amount remaining unpaid Nil Nil
ii) Interest due thereon as at 31 March Nil Nil
iii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of payment made to the . .
suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year. Nil Nil
iv) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the ; .
. . Nil Nil
interest specified under the Act.
v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at 31st March Nil Nil
vi) Further, interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for Nil Nil
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Act.
vii) Amount shown against dues to Micro & Small Enterprises under the head trade . .
payables represents amount outstanding as on 31st March but not due for payment. il il
Other Current liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Employee benefits payable 1,194.17 417.76 15.50
Statutory dues payable 428.67 420.04 467.69
Total 1,622.85 837.80 483.19
Current tax liabilities (net)

P P As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Provision for income tax 451.77 356.20 807.13
Total 451.77 356.20 807.13
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Revenue from Operations
Particulars

Revenue from sale ol goods

Total

(for additional disclosures refer note 31)

Other income
Particulars

Rental income

Gain on derecognition of right of use asscts

Interest income of finance lcase receivable

Gain on sale of property,plant and equipment

Interest income on deposits
Interest income - Others
Insurance ¢laims received
Miscellaneous income

Total

Purchases of stock in trade

Particulars

Textiles and garments

Total

Changes ol'inveatories ol (inished goods and stock-in-trade

Particulars

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock
Total

Employee benefits expense
Particulars

Salaries and wages

Bonus

Provident [und

StafT welfare expenses

Gratuity and compensated absences
Employees state insurance

Provident fund administrative charges

Workmen compensation

For the Year ended
31 March 2024

For the Year ended
31 March 2023

2.45.799.12

2.12.671.89

2,45,799.12

2,12,671.89

For the Year ended
31 March 2024

For the Year ended
31 March 2023

1.048.29 963.57
631.23 408.72
682.72 564.49

. 566.69
143.79 35.10
188.65 -

- 0.65

76.80 39.40
2,771.48 2,578.64

For the Year ended
31 March 2024

For the Year ended
31 March 2023

1.65.722.03

1.55.240,93

1,65,722.03

1,55,240.93

[For the Year ended
31 March 2024

For the Year ended
31 March 2023

44,435.41 32,635.03
(51.471.51) (44,435.41)
(7,036.09) (11,800.39)

For the Year ended
31 March 2024

For the Year ended
31 March 2023

23,887.70 18,880.84
1.137.14 778.47
978.52 671.65
885.03 669.43
649.13 578.43
431.04 338.95
174.48 122.42
6.95 17.08
28,150.00 22,057.28
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Finance costs

Interest on lease liabilities

Other borrowing costs
Interest on term loan

Interest on bank CC A/c
Interest on vehicle loan
Interest on unsecured loans

Total

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Particulars

Particulars

Depreciation on Right of use asset

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Other expenses

Advertisement

Particulars

Business promotion expenses

Rent

Shop maintenance - house keeping services

Shop maintenance - security services

Show room maintenance

Carriage inwards
Packing material
Electricity charges

Legal and professional charges

Insurance

Printing and stationery
Travelling and conveyance

Conveyance
Rates and taxes

Communication expenses
Repairs and maintenance

-Computers
-A C maintenance
- Electrical
-Generator
-Vehicles
-Lifts
Customer welfare

Expenses under CSR scheme

Interest on GST
Interest on TDS

Income tax earlier years

Auditors remuneration
-Statutory audit
-Tax audit

Donations

Total

For the Year ended  For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

4,061.13 3,478.49

1,207.91 1,127.64

785.75 363.60

730.26 537.33

140.14 81.59

26.74 16.18

6,951.93 5,604.84

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
6,401.42 5,681.63
5,412.65 3,993.35

11,814.07 9,674.99
For the Year ended  For the Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7,453.01 5,683.31
2,122.80 1,661.46

536.68 65.79
1,591.52 990.79
959.64 704.88
1,960.63 1,571.34
1,794.12 1,457.81
2,629.85 2,206.65
4,126.54 3,209.47
5,146.69 3,307.49
1,624.62 1,784.05
400.80 278.99
484.06 406.06
114.47 80.77
339.64 361.17
101.76 72.24
272.10 180.04
153.27 100.55
234.94 155.36
145.22 86.06
117.46 118.86
98.51 56.38
37.12 26.56
135.17 80.31
90.23 70.13

- 0.73

- 3.73

7.50 7.50
0.75 0.75
263.12 299.68
32,942.24 25,028.92
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29 First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
The financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2024, are the first the company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up
to and including the year ended 31 March 2023, the company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2024,
together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, as described in the summary of material accounting
policies. In preparing these financial statements, the company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2022, the company’s date of
transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements,
including the balance sheet as at 1 April 2022, the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Exemptions applied
Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The
company has applied the following exemptions:

Deemed Cost:

The company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognised in
its Indian GAAP financials as deemed cost at the transition date.

Estimates:

The estimates at 1 April 2022 and at 31 March 2023 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP (after
adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) and the company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates
under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not
required under Previous GAAP are made by the company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date.

The estimates used by the company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 1 April 2022, the date of transition
to Ind AS and as at 31 March 2024,

The following reconciliations along with explanations have been presented to explain the impact of transition to Ind AS:

Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2022 (date of transition to Ind AS);

Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2023; and

Reconciliation of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Previous GAAP and that computed under Ind AS:
Equity as at 31 Equity as at 1 April

FAandculas March 2023 2022
Other equity as per GAAP 32,589.46 23,760.46
Adjustments on account of transition to Ind AS
Impact on account of loyalty rewards (0.67) 0.67)
Impact on account of leases as per Ind AS 116 (2,549.22) 0.00
Impact on account of sub leases as per Ind AS 116 829.76 421.04
Impact on account of security deposits 418.01 81.59
Employee benefits related adjustments 0.00 0.00
Impact on account of difference in Deferred tax asset (2,584.05) (1,226.70)
Equity as reported per IND AS 28,703.29 23,035.72

Reconciliation of profit / (loss) between financial results as previously reported under Previous GAAP and Ind As for the year ended

. For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2023

Profit as per Indian GAAP 8,829.00
Adjustments on account of transition to IND AS
Impact on account of leases as per Ind AS 116 (2,549.22)
Impact on account of sub leases as per Ind AS 116 408.72
Impact on account of security deposits 336.42
Employee benefits related adjustments (114.08)
Adjustments due to Deferred Tax (1,328.63)
Profit as per Ind AS 5,582.21
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On account of transition to Ind AS
Deferred tax

IGAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12
approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under IGAAP.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the company has to
account for such differences. Deferred Tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or
profit and loss respectively.

Impact on account of leases

Ind AS 116 brings most leases on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance
leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained.

Consequent to this accounting standard, majority of leases for which the Company is the lessee became on-balance sheet liabilities with
corresponding right-of-use assets also recognised on the Balance sheet. The lease liability refl ects the net present value of the remaining lease
payments adjusted for payments made before the commencement date, lease incentives and other items related to the lease agreement, and the
right-of-use asset corresponds to the lease liability.

Upon adoption of the new standard, a portion of the annual operating lease costs, which was previously fully recognised as a rental / lease
expense, is recorded as interest expense. In addition, the portion of the lease payments which represents the reduction of the lease liability is
recognised in the cash flow statement as an outflow from fi nancing activities, which was previously fully recognised as an outflow from
operating activities.

Impact on account of sub leases
When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of
this assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease
classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a
head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

Amounts due from lessees under a finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to the net investment in the leased assets.
Finance lease income is allocated to the periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of
the finance lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Company applies Ind AS 115 to allocate the consideration in the contract.
The Company applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in Ind AS 109 to the net investment in the lease. The Company further
regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as part of “other
income”.

Defined benefit liabilities

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defi ned benefit plan on an actuarial basis.
Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS,
remeasurements (comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are
recognised j iately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI.
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Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Opening balances

Borrowings made during the year

Borrowings repaid during the year

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Recognition of right-of-use liability during the year
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Closing balances

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Opening balances

Borrowings made during the year
Borrowings repaid during the year
Effect of cl in foreign 2
Recognition of right-of-use liability during the year
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Closing balances

=)

Revenue from contract with customer

Disageregated revenue infor

Particulars Non current Borr gs  Current Borrowings Lease liabilities
4,943.45 7,673.43 38,551.71
9,401.02 3,554.68 -
- - 9,629.03
- - (5,182.78)
14,344.47 11,228.11 42,997.96
Particulars Non current Borrowings Current Borrowings Lease liabilities
6,447.70 9,241.25 33,639.50
(1,504.25) (1,567.81) -
1 rates - - -
- - 10,684.80
B - (5,772.58)
4,943.45 7,673.43 38,551.71
*Non-current borrowings include current maturities of non-current borrowings also.
For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Revenue from Operations

Sale of products
Manufactured - - -
Traded 245,799.12 212,671.89 155,197.15
Sale of services - - -
Total 245,799.12 212.671.89 155,197.15
(a) Disaggregated revenue information
Sale of services
India - -
Outside India - -
Traded
India 245,799.12 212,671.89 155,197.15
Qutside India - - -
245,799.12 212,671.89 155,197.15/
(b) Timing of revenue recognition
Products transferred for a point in time 245,799.12 212,671.89 155,197.15
Services rendered over a period of time -
245,799.12 212,671.89 155,197.15
(c) Reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised with contract price
Revenue as per contracted price 245,799.12 212,671.89 155,197.15
Adjustments - - -
Rebates - - -
Others - - -
Revenue from contracts with cust: S 245,799.12 212,671.8% 155,197.15
Auditor’s remuneration
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Audit fees 7.50 7.50 7.50
b) Other charges
Tax Audit 0.75 0.75 0.75
Certification fee
TOTAL 8.25 8.25 8.25
Earnings per share
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity holders 5,309.64 5,582.21 9,255.80
Profit attributable to equity holders for basic EPS
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 8,110,000 8,110,000 8,110,000
Add: Equity shares issued during the year - - -
Less: Buy back of equity shares during the year - - -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 8,110,000 8,110,000 8,110,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — Basic 8,110,000 8,110,000 8,110,000
ighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year — Diluted 8,110,000 8,110,000 8,110,000
ngs per share of par value 10/-Basic 65.47 68.83 114,13
gs per share of par value 10/- Diluted 65.47 68.83 114,13
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34 Income taxes
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are:

Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 4,674.75 3,266.76
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 42.03 594.99
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 4,716.78 3,861.75
OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
¢ 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (209.67) (114.08)
Deferred tax charged to OCI (52.77) (28.71)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 31

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Accounting profit before income tax 10,026.42 9,443.96
Enacted tax rate in India 25.17% 25.17%
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2023: 25.17%) 2,523.45 2,376.86
Tax effect of items non-deductible for tax purposes 100.25 95.65
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years 1,145.23 -

Tax effect of others 947.85 1,389.25
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 4,716.78 3.861.75
Effective tax rates 47.04% 40.89%

35 Segment information

The Company is engaged in business of trading of textiles, garments and other allied business activities and the same constitutes a single
reportable business segment as per Ind AS 108. And hence segment reporting specified as per Ind AS 108 is not applicable.

36 Employee benefits

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries and wages 23,887.70 18,880.84
Bonus 1,137.14 778.47
Provident fund 978.52 671.65
Staff welfare expenses 885.03 669.43
Gratuity and compensated absences 649.13 578.43
Employees state insurance 431.04 338.95
Provident fund administrative charges 174.48 122.42
Workmen compensation 6.95 17.08
Total 28,150.00 22,057.28

Notes:

(i) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. However,
effective date and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been notified/issued. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of
the Code and will recognize the impact, if any, based on its effective date.

(ii) The Company operates defined benefit plan i.e., gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has
completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service.

During the period the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of profit and loss:-
=

. For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Employers Contribution to Provident fund 978.52 671.65
Employers Contribution to Employee state insuran 431.04 338.95

1,409.56 1,010.60
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Gratuity benefits

In accordance with applicable laws, the Company has a defined benefit plan which provides for gratuity payments (the “Gratuity Plan”)
The components of gratuity cost recognized in the statement of profit and loss for the years ended 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and

Particulars

Current service cost
Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset)
Expected return on plan Assets

Components of defined benefit costs recognized in statement of profit or loss - (A)

Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan obligations

Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income -

®)
Total (A+B)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

417.02 344.33
128.47 100.98
545.49 44531

(209.67) (114.08)

(209.67) (114.08)
335.82 331.23

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is as follows:

Particulars

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Less: Fair value of plan assets

Net liability recognized in the balance sheet
Current portion of the above

Non-current portion of the above

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation is as follows

Particulars

Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year
Benefits Paid

Expenses recognised in statement of Profit & Loss
Current service cost

Interest on defined obligations

Expenses recognised in statement of OCI

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumptions
Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience changes
Defined benefit obligations at the end of the year

Summary of actuarial assumptions

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2,046.51 1,710.70
2,046.51 1,710.70
167.69 242.82
1,878.82 1,467.88
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,710.70 1,379.47
417.02 344.33
128.47 100.98
(51.11) (29.10)
(158.56) (84.98)
2,046.51 1,710.70

The actuarial assumptions used to determine benefit obligations in accounting for the gratuity plan are as follows:

Particulars
Discount rate
Rate of increase in compensation
Retirment age
Sensitivity analysis
Particulars

Under Base Scenario

Salary Escalation - Up by 1%
Salary Escalation - Down by 1%
Withdrawal Rates - Up by 1%
Withdrawal Rates - Down by 1%
Discount Rates - Up by 1%
Discount Rates - Down by 1%
Mortality Rates - Up by 10%
Mortality Rates - Down by 10%

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7.25% 7.51%
6.00% 6.50%
65 years 65 years
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2,046.51 1,710.70
2,279.21 1,874.60
1,848.33 1,568.05
2,069.44 1,720.41
2,018.45 1,698.81
1,846.38 1,571.16
2,286.80 1,874.51
2,047.88 1,711.14
2,045.13 1,710.25
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37 Related party transactions

Name of the Related Party

Relation

M/s. R S Brothers Jewellers Private Limited

M/s. R S Brothers Textiles & Garments, Dilsukhnagar
M/s. Status Textiles & Garments

M/s. Sree Venkateswara Enterprises

M/s. R S Avenues Private Limited

=

M/s. Merit Retail Private Ltd
M/s. Siddhi Vinayaka Fashions LLP
M/s. P Venkateswarulu Pvt Ltd
M/s S Rajamouli Pvt Ltd

M/s T Prasada Rao Pvt Ltd
M/sR S Ad Enterprises

Sri P Venkateswarulu

Sri S Rajamouli

Sri T Prasada Rao

Mr S Suresh

MrP V S Abhinay

Mr T Rakesh

Mr T Keshav Gupta

Mr. P Chandra Sekhar

Mr S Venkata Ramana

Mr P Srinivasa Rao

Mr S Ramulu

Mr G V Ramesh Babu

Mrs P V L Spandana

Smt P Malathi Lakshmi Kumari
Ms P Rachana Sree

Ms P VL Greeshma

Mrs M Lalitha Ratna Kumari
Mrs Siddamsetty Ramya

Mrs. Ashmitha Padmanabhan

Mrs G Kavitha

Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Entities in which KMP's exercises control / has significant influence
Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

. ==
Relatives of Key Management Personnel o N & CO \
7

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
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37 (d) Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Key Management Relatives of Key Associate
Personnel Management Personnel
Particul For the For the For the For the For the For the
arficutars Ycar ended Year Year ended | Year ended|Year ended| Year ended
31 March ended 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March
2024 31 March 2024 2023 2024 2023
2023
1. Unsecured Loans
(a) Received during the year 1.043.89 | 3.238.22 233.18 108.20 -
(b) Returned during the year 141991 | 3.651.93 320.40 1.593.07 -
2. Expenditure
(a) Rent paid during the ycar 811.28 803.33 256.82 254.89 294.53 223.46
(b) Salary - 869.38 733.60 -
{ ¢ ) Remuneration 1.306.20 | 1.740.00 - e
(d) Purchascs 17.67 - 4 24.19
(e) Interest on Un-Secured Loans 26.74 10,38 5.80 -
(0 Management Fee 4.840.00 | 3.072.00 - -
(g) Advertisement - - 923.10 746.62
3. Income
a) Rental Income during the year - - 1.017.16 684.24
b) Sales = - 7.277.13 9.777.87
¢) Advertisement Income 8.59 - - -
d) Interest Income Received 188.65 - - - -
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Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured Loans Taken
Sri P Venkateswarlu 250.00 1,580.90
Sri S Rajamouli 697.99 882.39
Sri T Prasada Rao 95.90 794.93
Mrs. P ML Kumari 78.18 92.01
Mrs P V Sujatha 30.00 10.38
Mrs. P V L Spandana 125.00 5.42
Mrs.M V L Sindhu _ 0.38
Mr P V S Abhinay 340.00
Mrs G Lalitha = 5
Unsecured Loans Returned -
Sri P Venkateswarlu 252.55 1,709.69
Sri S Rajamouli 717.28 1,002.05
Sri T Prasada Rao 110.08 940.19
Mrs. P ML Kumari 90.52 1,480.00
Mrs P V Sujatha 88.73 111.27
Mrs.M V L Sindhu 3.99 037
Mrs. P V L Spandana 137.15 0.64
Mr P V S Abhinay 340.00
Mrs G Lalitha _ 2.78
Directors Remuneration -
Sri P Venkateswarulu 220.79 450.00
Sri S Rajamouli 219.55 450.00
Sri T Prasada Rao 145.86 300.00
Sri P 'V Sai Abhinay 240.00 180.00
Sri S Suresh 240.00 180.00
Sri T.Keshav Gupta 240.00 180.00
Management Fee -
M/s. P Venkateswarulu Pvt Ltd 1,815.00 1,152.00
M/s S Rajamouli Pvt Ltd 1,815.00 1,152.00
M/s T Prasada Rao Pvt Ltd 1,210.00 768.00
Rent Received =
R S Brothers Jewellers Private Limited 923.50 614.00
Siddhi Vinayaka Fashions LLP 93.66 70.24
Rent paid -
Sri P Venkateswarulu 304.23 301.33
Sri S Rajamouli 304.23 301.33
Sri T Prasada Rao 202.82 200.88
Sri T Rakesh 4.50 4.50
Sri T Keshav Gupta 4.50 4.50
Sri S Suresh 18.00 18.00
Smt P Malathi Lakshmi Kumari 211.82 209.88
Smt M V L Sindhu 18.00 18.00
Sree Venkateswara Enterprises 144.00 72.93
R S Avenues Pvt Ltd 150.53 150.53
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Purpose

Advertisement paid
R S Ad Enterprises 92310 746,62
INTEREST PAID -
Mrs G Lalitha N

Sri T Prasada Rao 0.69 -
Sri P Venkateswarlu 0.31 -
Sri S Rajamouli 7.26 ~
Mrs. P M L Kumari - -
Mrs P V Sujatha 6.00 10.38
Mrs. M V L. Sindhu 040 038
Mrs. PV L. Spandana 12.08 542

SALARIES
Sri S Ramulu 32.00 30.00
Sri P Chandra Sckhar Rao 3327 32.00
Sri S Venkataramana 79 86 74 .80
Sri. P Srinivasa Rao 3233 30.00
Sri G V Ramesh Babu 79.86 74.80
Mrs. PV L. Spandana 24.00 24.00
Ms. PV L. Greeshma 90.00 90.00
Ms Siddamselly Ramya 60.00 -
Mrs. P M L Kumari 180.00 120.00
Ms P Rachana Sree 90.00 90.00
Mrs M Lalitha Ratna Kumari 24.00 24.00
Mrs G Kavitha 24.00 24.00
Mrs Ashmitha Padmanabhan 60.00 60.00
Mis Vineetha Balakrishnan 60.00 60.00
Sales
R'S Brothers Textiles & Garments, 715.69 97418
Merit Retail Private Limited 1.633.52 1.942.61
Siddhi Vinayaka Fashions | 1P 4.841 63 6.770 24
Status Textiles & Garments 86.29 90 85
Advertisemen( Income Received
Siddhi Vinayaka Fashions I.LP 8.59 -
Interest Income Received
S Suresh 72.76 -
V'S Abhinay 110.93 -

E Disclosure in respecet of nun-monetary transactions with the Related Parties during the year

Name of the Related Party As at As at

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
R'S Brothers Jewellers Private [imiled 1250000 12.500.00

Corporate Guarantee
for the facilities
availed with SBJ
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38 Financial instruments and fair value
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as below,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments as of 31 March 2024,and 31 March 2023, respectively were as follows:
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Total carrying value Total fair value  Total carrying value  Total fair value

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents including the other bank balances 3,420.89 3,420.89 1,452.58 1,452.58
Trade receivables 2,837.29 2,837.29 3,240.50 3,240.50
Other financial assets 15,278.46 15,278.46 8,114.28 8,114.28
Total 21,536.63 21,536.63 12,807.35 12,807.35
Liabilities:

Trade payables 24,613.05 24,613.05 17,167.96 17,167,96
Non-current borrowings 11,163.15 11,163.15 3,108.30 3,108.30
Current borrowings 14,409.43 14,409.43 9,508.58 9,508.58
Lease liabilities 42,997.96 42,997.96 38,551.71 38,551.71
Other financial liabilities 4,210.54 4,210.54 3,102.37 3,102.37
Total 97,394.14 97,394.14 71,438.93 71,438.93

There has been no transfers between levels during the year. The management has assessed that the carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities for
which fair values are disclosed, reasonably approximate their fair values because these instruments have short-term maturities.

39 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance the
Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and
security deposits.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company’s risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(@) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument that will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk i.e. interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include borrowings, derivatives financial instruments and trade payables.

. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings with floating interest rates. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, without considering impact of derivatives not designated as hedges, as

follows:
: Increase/decrease in | Effect on profit
Particulars Se—
basis points before tax
Sunday, 31 March, 2024
INR 50.00 (127.23)
INR (50.00) 127.23
Friday, 31 March, 2023
INR 50.00 (61.93)
INR (50.00) 61.93
Thursday, 31 March, 2022
INR 50.00 (63.08)
INR (50.00) 63.08
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Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Total debt (including lease liabilities) 114,859.34 92,512.44
Shareholder's Equity 34,981.50 29,514.29
Ratio 3.28 3.13
% Change from previous year 4.75%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt service divide

Ratio workings 31-Mar-2024
Explanation provided for any
. B . g o change in ratio by more than
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023 o Change 25% in current year as
compared to previous year
Current Ratio 0.97 0.95 1.59%
Debt Equity Ratio 3.28 3.13 4.75%
i Due to di in Inteerst and
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (2.61) (4.17) 37.53% | :a;f::f:“‘ eerstan
Return on Equity 0.16 0.21 -21.30%
Inventory Turnover Ratio 0.44 0.27 65.42% Due to increase in inventory
Trade Receivables turnover ratio 80.88 76.81 5.30%
Trade Payables tumover ratio 447 5.26 -14.92%
. . Due to increase in sales and
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 121.67 84.74 43.58% decrease in working capital
Net profit ratio 0.02 0.03 -17.70%
Return on Capital employed 0.17 0.18 -7.76%
.. _Current Ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Current assets 61,537.92 50,966.87
Current liabilities 63,558.06 53,476.46
Ratio 0.97 0.95
% Change from previous year 1.59%

. Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Sharcholder's Equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings

d by interest and lease payments + principal repayments

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Net Profit after tax 5,309.64 5,582.21
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost
-Depreciation and amortizations 11,814.07 9,674.99
-Finance cost 6,951.93 5,604.84
Earnings available for debt service 24,075.65 20,862.03
Interest cost on borrowings 730.26 537.33
Lease payments (6,415.26) (5,539.04)
Principal repayments for long-term borrowings (3,554.68) -
Total Interest and principal repayments (9,239.68) (5,001.71)
Ratio (2.61) (4.17)
% Changc from previous year -37.53%

Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit after taxes divided by average shareholder's equity

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Net profit afier taxes 5,309.64 5,582.21
Less: Preference dividend - -
Earning available to equity shareholders 5,309.64 5,582.21
Average Shareholder's Equity 32,247.90 26,680.51
Ratio 0.16 0.21
% Change from previous year -21.30%
Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of 800ds sold divided by average inventory
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Cost of Inventory consumed 21,113.90 10,256.89
Average Invent 47,953.46 38,535.22

0.44 0.27

6542%
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f. Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Revenue from operations divided by Average Trade Receivables

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenue from Operations 245,799.12 212,671.89
Average Trade Receivables 3,038.89 2,768.75
Ratio 80.88 76.81
% Change from previous year 5.30%

g Trade Payables turnover ratio = Puchases of stock-in-trade and other expenses divided by average Trade Payables

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Maﬁ
Purchase of stock-in-trade 165,722.03 155,240.93
Total 165,722.03 155,240.93
Average Trade payables and provision for expenses 37,050.94 29,528.99
Ratio 4.47 5.26
% Change from previous year -14.92%

h. Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Working Capital where Working Capital = Current Assets - Current

Liabilities

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations 245,799.12 212,671.89
Working capital (2,020.19) (2,509.59)
Ratio (121.67) (84.74)
% Change from previous year 43.58%

i.  Net profit ratio = Net profit after taxes divided by Net Sales

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Net profit after taxes 5,309.64 5,582.21
Net Sales 245,799.12 212,671.89
Ratio 0.02 0.03
Y Change from previous year -17.70%

J- Return on Capital employed (pre cash)=Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT) divided by Capital Employed

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Profit before tax (A) 10,026.42 9,443.96
Finance costs (B) 6,951.93 5,604.84
Other income ©) 2,771.48 2,578.64
EBIT (D) = (A)+(B)-(C) 14,206.88 12,470.16
Capital Employed (Pre Cash) (N)= (E)-(F)-(G) 83,313.67 67,453.90
Total Assets (E) 150,292.61 122,382.93
Current liabilities (F) 63,558.06 53,476.46
Cash and Cash equivalents G 3,420.89 1,452.58

0.17 0.18
-1.76%

Ratio (D)/(.J)
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41 Details of CSR expenditure
Details of Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure in accordance with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 134.51 81.70
i) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - -
(iii) Total CSR obligation for the financial year 134.51 -
iv) Amount of expenditure incurred
(a) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(b) On purposes other than (a) above 135.17 80.31
v) Shorifall/ (Pre spent) at the end of the year ((iii)-(iv)) 1.39
vi) Total of previous years shortfall - 1.39
The company had taken all
necessary steps to spend
requisite amount for CSR
activities. However the
company spent only Rs.
vii) Reason for shortfall - 80.31 Lakhs upto the
financial year ended 31
March 2023 and unspent
amount of Rs. 1.39 Lakhs
transferred to a specific
fund in Schedule VII

Particulars

viii) Nature of CSR activities Promotion of education and social welfare
ix) Details of related party transactions, e.g. Contribution to a
trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as N.A

per relevant Accounting Standard

) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred
by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the N.A
provision

42 Other statutory information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

(if) The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies.
(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Pa
(b)ﬂyprovide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(viii) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
(ix) No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,
during the year.

(x) The Company has borrowings from banks against security of its current assets, The reports or statements of Current assets filed by the company
with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(xi) The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-
progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.
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(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations, The Company’s exposure to credit
risk arises majorly from trade and other receivables. Other financial assets like security deposits and bank deposits are mostly with government authorities and
scheduled banks and hence, the Company does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets.

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal
course of business.

Details of financial assets — not due, past due and impaired

None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including term deposits with banks, were past due or impaired as of 31 March 2024. The Company’s credit period for
trade and other receivables payable by its customers generally ranges from 3045 days.

The ageing of trade and other receivables is given below:

Particulars sk Lt
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired
Less than 365 days 2,837.29 3,240.50
More than 365 days
2,837.29 3,240.50

Less : Allowance for credit losses
Total 2,837.29 3,240.50

Reconciliation of impairment of trade receivables and other assets

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Impairment of Trade receivable

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Provision made during the year - -
Less: Reversal of earlier years provisions - -
Less: Bad debts written off from earlier years provisions - =
Balance at the end of the year - -

Impairment of Other assets

Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Provision made during the year - -
Less: Provision reversed during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year - -

(¢) Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements at all times. The Company relies on a mix of
borrowings and excess operating cash flows to meet its needs for funds. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium/long term
expansion needs. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining
sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where
applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities on undiscounted basis:

Maturities Up to 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 31 March 2024

Non-current borrowings 3,181.32 11,163.15 11,163.15
Lease liabilities 4,395.19 38,602.77 42,997.96
Current borrowings 11,228.11 - 11,228.11
Trade payables 38,408.90 - 38,408.90
Other financial liabilities 4,102.24 108.30 4,210.54
Total 61,315.75 49,874.23 108,008.66
As at 31 March 2023

Non current borrowings 1,835.15 3,108.30 3,108.30
Lease liabilities 3,791.00 34,760.71 34,760.71
Current borrowings 9,508.58 - 9,508.58
Trade payables 35,692.98 - 35,692.98
Other financial liabilities 3,047.09 55.29 3,102.37
Total 53.874.79 37,924.30 86,172.95
As at 31 March 2022

Non current borrowings 1,911.58 4,536.12 6,447.70
Current borrowings 11,152.83 30,424.57 41,577.39
Trade payables 23,365.00 - 23,365.00
Other financial liabilities 2,701.91 324.25 3,026.16

Total 39,131.32 35,284.93 74.416.25
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43 Leases
a Lease as lessee
The Compiny has lease contracts for buildings The leases geperilly hive lease terms betseen 5 10 30 yenrs. The Compam s obhigations under 1s lenses are
wngand sub-leasing the leased assets There lease contracts th

secured by the lessor's tile 1o the leased assets Generally, the Company s resteicted from as

melude extension and termination options. which are further diseussed below

T'he Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases with low value The Company applics the “short-term lease” and “lease of low:

value assets” recognition exemptions lor these leases

Reter Note 4 for details of carrving amounts ol nght-of-use assets recogmsed and the movements during the vear Set oul below are the carrying amounts of lease
labilities (included under interest-bearing borrowmgs) and the mosements during the vear

As at As at

TN Ear—
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

At the beginning ol the vear 3855171 33.63950
Additions 8,389 25 826715
leases terminated - -
Accrelion of interest 4,061 13 347849
Payments (8.004 13) (6,833.42)
At the end of the year 42,997.96 38,551.71
Current 439519 3,791.00
Non-current 38,602 77 34,760 71
For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 Muarch 2023
Depreciation expense ol tighi-ol-use assets 640142 S.681 63
Interest expense on lease labilities 4.001 13 3478 49
Expense relaling to short-term leases 530,68 6579

Total amount recognized in the P&L account 11),999,23

The Company has scveral lease contracts that include extension and termination options These options are negotiated by management to provade flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and ahgn with the Company s business needs Management exereises significant judgement 1n determinimyg whether these
extension and termination options are reasonably certam o be excreised The elfectine mierest rate fos lease habiliies s 109

For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Expense relating Lo leases of low-value assets . -

Particulars

Expense relating to short-term leases 536 68 6579
Varniable lease payments - -
Total Lease Payments not considered as Lease payments under Ind AS 536.68 65.79
b Leases as lessor
1 Facnce fease

During the vear ended 31 March 2024 (he compiany has sub-leased a burlding that has been presented as a nght-oltuse asset property, plant and cquipment

During the year ended 31 March 2024 the company recogmised a gam of 631 23 lakhs (31 March 2023 408 72) on derccogmtion of the right-of-use asset

pertaining to the building and presented the gain as part of “Nel gain on sale of° property. plant and equipment’
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the company recognised interest income on lease receivables of 309 73 lakhs(3 1 March 2023 228 08)

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease recevables. showing the undiscounted lease payments (o be reeeived after the reporting date

Forthe Year ended For the Year ended

LARCIIR 31 Muarch 2024 31 March 2023
Less than one vear 607 31 444 92
One 1o (wo yeairs 65017 607 31
Two 1o three vears 683 00 65017
Three 1o lour vears 649 23 683.00
Four to five years 662 06 64925
More than [ive vears 3,503 55 4,165 61
Potal undiscounted lease receivable 6,755.33 7.200.25
Unearned finance income 3,154.70 443111
Net investmenl in the lease 3,600.63 2,769.13

Operating lease
The company leases out its butlding The company hus classified these leases as operatmng leases. because they do not transter substantially all of the risks and
rewards incidental 1o the ownership ol the assets

Rental income recognised by the company durtng the year ended 31 March 2024 was 1038 78 lakhs (3] March 2023 INR 963 57)

The following 1able sets out a maturity analysis of fease payments. showing the undiscounted lease pavments to be reeen ed afier the reporting dale

FFor the Year ended FFor the Yeuar ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
686 54 686 54
686.54 686 54

Less than one year,
Total
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44  Capital Management

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued

operations,

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Non current borrowings 11,163.15 3,108.30

Current borrowings 14,409.43 9,508.58
Less: cash and cash equivalents -3,420.89 -1,452.58
Net debt 22,151.70 11,164.31
Equity share capital 811.00 811.00
Other equity 34,170.50 28,703.29
Total capital 34,981.50 29,514.29
Capital and net debt Gearing Ratio 0.63 0.38

45 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a) Bank Guarantees issued by bank
- on behalf of company
- on behalf of others 12,500.00 12,500.00

Previous period/year figures have been regrouped/re-classified wherever necessary, to conform to current period’s classification in order to
comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013 effective 1 April 2022.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
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1. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
1.1 Corporate Information

R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) is a Company
incorporated under Indian Companies Act, 1956 on 31* May' 2008 (the erstwhile Act governing the
companies) having its registered office at premises No.7-2-1740, Warehouse No.14&15, KSSP
Warehousing Complex, Opposite to Sky Mall, Sanathnagar, Hyderabad-500018, Telangana, India.

The Company, ‘R S Brothers Retail India Private Limited’ is engaged in the business of trading of
textiles, garments and other allied business activities.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with
and in compliance in all material aspects, with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read along with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, and presentation requirements of Division
11 of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, and as amended from time to time together with
the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015. These financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 are the first the Company has prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

These financial statements have been prepared by the Company as a going concern on the basis of
relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date. 31 March 2024. These
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved by the Company’s Board
of Directors on 25.09.2024. Please refer Note no 29 for detailed disclosures on the first-time
adoption of Ind AS including reconciliations of equity and profit or loss from previous GAAP to
Ind AS.

b) Basis of Measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual
basis, except for the following material items in the balance sheet:
a) Certain financial assets are measured either at fair value or at amortized cost depending on
the classification;
b) Long-term borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method and
¢) Employee defined benefit assets/(liability) are recognized as the net total of the fair value of
plan assets. plus actuarial losses. less actuarial gains and the present value of the defined
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d) right-of-use the assets are recognised at the present value of lease payments that are not
paid at that date. This amount is adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, lease incentives received and initial direct costs, incurred, if any.

¢) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All the financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the
nearest Lakhs.

d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates, and assumption

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may difter from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. In particular. the areas involving critical estimates or Judgment are:

Property, plant and equipment

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment is derived on determining of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The residual values of Company’s
assets are determined by management at the time of acquisition of asset and is reviewed
periodically, including at each financial year end.

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of impairment loss on the
financial and nonfinancial assets. The calculations of impairment loss are sensitive to underlying
assumptions.

Tax provisions and contingencies

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of tax provisions and
contingencies. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and MAT credit entitlements
to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which these losses and credit
entitlements can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of the obligation are determined using
actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexitics involved in the valuation and its long-term
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The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds
where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using internal
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk. credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial

instruments.

e) Current and noncurrent classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Company s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind
AS 1, presentation of [inancial statements.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s
normal operatingcycle;
b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:
¢) Itisexpected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting date: or
d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted {rom being exchanged or used to settle a
liability forat least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) Itisexpected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date: or

d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of
the counterparty. resultin its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification

The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

Current assefs:
rem Ay
Deferrediax

Mies include the current portion of noncurrent assets/ liabilities respectively.

abilities are always disclosed as non- current.

LI
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of asscts for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its

operating cycle.

f) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

o in the principal market for the asset or liability. or

e in the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value

of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and bes! use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

elevel 1T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

eLevel 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Ind AS financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement. such as, denvqtlve instruments and unquolcd lmanual assets measured at fair value,
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External valuers are involved. wherever considered necessary. For the purpose of fair value
disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as

explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given

in the relevant notes.

2. Summary of material accounting policies

On 31 March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 amending the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015. The amendments come into force with eflect from 1 April 2023, i.e,, Financial Year
2023-24. One of the major changes is in Ind AS 1 ‘Preparation of Financial Statements, which
requires companies 1o disclose in their financial statements “material accounting policies” as against
the erstwhile requirement to disclose ‘significant accounting policies”. The word ‘significant’ is
substituted by ‘material’.

Accounting policy information is expected to be material if users of an entity’s financial statements
would need it to understand other material information in the financial statements.

The Company applied the guidance available under paragraph 1178 ol Ind AS 1, Presentation of
Financial Statements in evaluating the material nature of the accounting policies.

The following are the material accounting policies for the Company:
2.1 Property Plant & Equipment

On transition to Ind AS ie. on | April 2022. the Company has clected 1o continue with the
carrying value of all of its property. plant and cquipment (PPE) recognised as at 1 April 2022
measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the dcemed cost of the PPE.

Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property. plant and equipment arc recognised as an asset if. and only if it is
probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Items of property, plant and equipment (including capital-work-in progress) are stated at cost of
acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. if any.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset i.e.. freight,
duties and taxes applicable and other expenses related to acquisition and installation. The cost of

sell-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
| s
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The cost of replacing part of an item of property. plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part will be derecognized. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the statement of

profit and loss as incurred.
Ttems of stores and spares that meet the delinition ol Property. plant and equipment are capitalized
at cost. otherwise. such items are classilied as inventories.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Items of property. plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are
measured at fair value. unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair
value of either the asset received or assct given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the
asset exchanged is recorded at the carrying amount of the asset given up.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits
associated with the expenditure will low to the Company and the cost ol the item can be
measured reliably.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of profit and loss under Written Down Value method
based on the Companies Act. 2013 (“Schedule 117). For assets acquired or disposed of during the

year. depreciation is provided on pro rata basis. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated uselul lives are as follows:

Type of Asset Useftul life in
years

Plant and Machinery 15 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Electrical IFittings 10 Years
Furniture and fittings 10 Years
Motor vehicles 8 Years
Buildings 30 Years
Computers 6 Years

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially rccognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benetits are expected from its use or
disposal.

0]




R S BROTHERS RETAIL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and

adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property. plant and cquipment outstanding at each
reporting date is disclosed as capital advances under other asscts. The cost of property. plant and
equipment notready to use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Assets not ready [or use are notdepreciated.

2.2 Intangible assets
On transition to Ind AS. the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value ol all of
intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2022 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that

carrying value as the deemed cost.

Intangible assets acquired scparately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition. intangible asscts arc carricd at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated  impairment  losses.  Internally  generated  intangibles.  excluding  capitalised
development costs. are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure 15 incurred.

The usetul lives ol intangible asscts are assessed as linite.

Intangible assets arc amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment.
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method [or an intangible assct are reviewed at least at the end of cach
reporting period. Changes in the expected usclul life or the expeeted pattern of consumption of
future cconomic benelits embodied in the asset are considered o modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate. and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value ol another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition ol an intangible asset are measured as the ditterence
between the net disposal procceds and the carrying amount ol the asset and are recognised in the

statement of profit and loss when the assei 1s derecognised

Following initial recognition. the assct is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete
and (he assctis available for use.

Computer Softwure

The computer soltware is amortised on a straight line basis over the uselul economic life of 6

years. as estimated by the management.

2.3 Financial Instruments

A financial jz¢
liability /

any contract that gives rise to a linancial asset ol one entity and a financial
ent of another entity.

71
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a. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets arc recognized initially at fair value plus. in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that arc attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Purchases or sales ol financial assets that require delivery of assets within a
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e.. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categories:
¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost;
e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

e Debt instruments. derivatives and equity instruments at f{air value through profit or loss
(FVTPL);

e [quity instruments measured at [air value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost, il both ol the following conditions are met:
(i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and (ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such linancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of prolit and loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOC!

A “debt instrument’ is classified as FV'TOCI. if both of the following criteria are met: (i) The
objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and (i1) The asset’s contractual cash [lows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. However, the Company
recognizes interest income. impairment losses and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset. cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified [rom the equity (o statement ol profit and loss. Interest carned whilst holding

8|
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument. which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI. is classified as FVTPL. Debt
instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the statement of prolitand loss.
Equity Instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. If the Company decides to classily an equity
instrument as FVTOCL, then all [air value changes on the instrument. excluding dividends. are
recognized in the OCI and there is no subsequent reclassification of these lair value gains and losscs
to the statement of profit and loss. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or. where applicable. a part of a [inancial assct or part of a group of similar
financial asscts) is primarily derccognized (i.c.. removed from the Company’s balance sheet)

when:
a) The rights to receive cash lows from the asset have expired. or

b) The Company has translerred its rights to receive cash lows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through™ arrangement; and cither (a) the Company has transferred substantially all
the visks and rewards of theasset. or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass- through arrangement. it evaluates i’ and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all ol the risks and rewards of
the assct. nor transferred control of the asset. the Company continues to recognize the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case. the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The translerred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and oblications that the Company has retained.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or a group ol financial
assets is impaired.
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company uses “Expected Credit Loss™ (ECL) model. for

evaluating impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through Profit
and Loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

e The 12 months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default
cial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
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e Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible

default events over the life of the lTnancial instrument)

The company uses 12-month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant
increase in credit risk. [ there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

b. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilitics are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 1.e., loans and
borrowings. payables. or as derivatives designated as hedeing instruments in an cifective hedge. as
appropriate. All [inancial labilitics are recognized initially at tair value and. in the case of loans

and borrowings and pavables. net ol dircetly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's linancial habilitics include trade and other payables. loans and borrowings

including bank overdrafts. tinancial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement ol [inancial liabilities depends on their classilication.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair valuc through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held (or trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are nol designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held or trading. unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for tading are recognised in the

statement of prolit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at [air value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date ol recognition. and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilitics designated as 'V ITPL, [air value gains/losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCL. These gains/ loss are not subscequently transferred to the statement
of profit and loss.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subscquently mceasured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
liabilities are derccognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the_EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement ol

profit and loss.
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De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing linancial liability 1s replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms. or the terms ol an cxisting liability are substantially
modified, such an cxchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The dillference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and Labilities

The Company determines classification of financial asscts and labilitics on initial recognition.
After initial recognition. no re-classitication is made for [inancial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments. a re-
classification is made only if there is a change in the business mode! for managing those assets. A
change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassilies financial assets, it applies
the re-classification prospectively from the re-classification date. which is the [irst day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not

restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
Offsctting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
shect. if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.11 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and bank balances comprise of cash balance in hand. in current accounts with banks. and other
short-term deposits. For this purposc. "short-term" means imvestments having maturity ol three
months or less from the date ol investment. and which are subject to an insignificant risk ol change
in value. Bank overdrafts that arc repayable on demand and form an integral part ol our cash
management arc included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose ol the

statement ol cash Tows.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value by using IFIIFO method

Cost comprises of all costs ol purchase. costs ol services. costs ol conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition excluding duties. Cost is
determined by using [FIIFO method.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts ol the Company’s non-linancial assets. other than inventories and deferred
tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment.

[Many such mdication#Z<ists

b F

e . . .
theigdhe assel’s recoverable amountis estimated.
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The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-gencrating unit (as deflined below) is the greater of its

value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.

In assessing valuc in use. the estimated future cash [lows are discounted (o their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that rellects current market assessments of the time value of money

and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit.

For the purpose of impairment testing. assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows [rom continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflow of
other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit™).

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations.
which are prepared scparately lor cach of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods. a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project [uture cash flows after
the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/torecasts. the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case.
this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products. industries, or

country in which the entity operates. or tor the market in which the asset 1s used.

An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss if the estimated recoverable
amount of an asset or ils cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrving amount ol the other assels in

the unit on a pro-rata basis.
Reversal of Impairment of Assets

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect ol other assets, impairment
losses recognized 1 prior periods are assessed at each reporting date lor any indications that the
Joss has decrcased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed i there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 1o
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have

been determined. net of depreciation or amortization. if no impairment loss had been recognized.
2.14 Employec Benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related scrvice is provided. A liability s
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation 1o pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employvee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans
The Company’s contributions (o defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of prolit
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Defined benefit plans

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated
using the projected unit credit method consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries. The present
value of the delined benelit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated [uture cash
outflows using interest rates ol high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid. and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related defined benefit obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market interest rates on government bonds are used. The current service cost of the delined benefit
plan. recognised in the statement ol profit and loss in employee benelit expense. reflects the
increase in the delined benefit oblication resulting from employce service in the current year.
benefit changes. curtailments and settlements. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value ol plan asscts. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss. Actuarial gains and losses arising [rom experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions for delined benefit obligation and plan assets are
recognized in OCI in the period in which they arise.  When the benefits under a plan arc changed or
when a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss
on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of prolit and loss. The Company
recognises gains or losses on the settlement o a defined benelit plan obligation when the settlement

occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expensc in the statement of profit and loss when the
Company is demonstrably committed. without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal
detailed plan to either terminate employment belore the normal retirement date. or to provide
termination benefits as a result of an off ¢r made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination
benefits for voluntary redundancies arc rccognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
if the Company has made an ol er cncouraging voluntary redundancy. it is probable that the offer
will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long-term employee benelits is the amount of
future benefit that employees have carned in return for their service in the current and previous
periods. That benelit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

2.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of profit and Joss 1[L as a result ol a past event. the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably. and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 1f the effect of the time value
of money is material. provisions are detcrmined by discounting the expected [uture cash [lows at a
pre-tax rate that rgflects current market assessments of the time value ofmoney and the risks specific
to the liability ARG :
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Contingent liabilitics and contingent assers

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may. but probably will not. require an outflow of resources. Where there is a
possible obligation or a presentobligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources
is remote. no provision or disclosure 1s made.

Contingent assets arc not recognmzed in the financial statements. However. contingent assets are
assessed continually and ifiC1s virtually certain that an mflow ol cconomic benelits will anise. the

assel and related income are recognized in the period in which the change oceurs.

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
expected benelits 1o be dertved by the Company [rom a contract are lower than the unavoidable
cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value
of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established. the Company recognises any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Reimbursement rights

Expected reimbursements for expenditures required to settle a provision are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss only when receipt of such reimbursements is virtually certain. Such
reimbursements arc recognised as a separate asset in the balance sheet, with a corresponding
credit to the specific expense for which the provision has been made.

2.16 Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily [rom sale ol traded goods.

a) Sales are recognised when goods are supplied and control over the goods sold is translerred
to the buyer which is on dispatch / delivery as per the terms of contracts. Sales are net of
returns. trade discounts. rebates and Goods and Service Tax (GS'T).

b) The Company recognizes revenue at the [air value when the revenue can be reliably
measured. 1t is probable that the future economic benefits would flow to the entity. The
company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type ol
customer, type of transaction and specilic of the arrangement.

¢) Interest Income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount

outstanding and applicable interest rate.

d) Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.
2.17 Tax Expenses

Income tax cxpense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in prolit or loss except (0
the extent that it relates (o a business combination. or items recognised dircethy in equity or in Other
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Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from

or paid to the taxation authoritics. The tax rates and tax Taws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted. at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items
recognised outside the statement ol profit and loss is recognised outside the statement ol profit and
loss (either in OCI or in equily in correlation to the underlying transaction). Management
periodicallyv evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respeet to situations in which
applicable tax regulations arc subject to interpretation and cstablishes  provisions. where

approprialc.
Deferred tax

Deterred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
ol assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differcnces and
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised Lo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward ol unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of delcrred tax asscls is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sulficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part

ol the deferred tax asscet to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable prolits will allow the deferred tax assct to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that arce expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have

been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Delerred tax relating o items recognised outside the statement ol prolit and loss is recognised
outside the statement ol profit and loss (cither in OCI or in cquity in correlation to the underlying
transaction).

Deferred tax assets and detferred tax labilities are offsct if a legally enforceable right exists to set
ofl current tax asscts against current tax liabilitics and the deferred taxes relate (o the same taxable

entity and the g
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Goods and Service Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

When the tax incurred on purchase ol usscets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority. the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable. Otherwise. cxpenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of
taxes paid. The net amount ol tax recoverable from. or pavable w. the taxation authority is included
as parl ol receivables or pavables in the balance sheet.

2.18 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains. a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

The Company as a lessee

The Company applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except lor
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make

lease payments and right-o[-use asscts representing the right (o use the underlying assets.

Right-of<use ussels

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date ol the lease (i.c.. the date
the underlying assct is available for use). Right-of~usc asscls are mcasured at cost. less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
[1abilitics.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received.

Right-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the leased asset translers to the Company at the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option. depreciation is calculated
using the estimated uselul life of the assct.

The right-ol-use assets are also subject to impairment. Reler to the accounting policies in section of

Impairment of non-linancial assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the leasc. the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value ol lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lcase payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable. variable
[ease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price ol a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties lor terminating the
lease. il the lease term reflects the Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate

are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which

the event or g ers the pay ment oceurs.

1z
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In calculating the present value of lease payments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the leasc commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lcase is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition. the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if therc is a modification. a change in the lease term. a change in
the lease payments (e.g.. changes (o uture payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used Lo determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset. The Company’s lease labilities arc included in Borrowings.

=

Short-term leases and leases of lovi-value ussels

The Company applics the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.. those
lcases that have a lease term ol 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value asscts recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on shorl-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as lessor
At Inception or on modification ol a contract that contains a lease component, the Company

allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative

stand-alone prices.

When the Company acts as a lessor. it determines at Icase inception whether each lease is a finance

lease or an operating lease.

To classify cach leasc. the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership ol the underlying asset. If this is
the case, then the lease is a {inance lease: il not. then it is an operating lease. As part of this
assessment. the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part
of the economic life of the asset

When the Company is an intermediate lessor. it accounts lor its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification ol a sub-lcase with reference to the right-of-
use asset arising {rom the head lease. not with relerence to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above. then it classifies the
sub-lease as an opcerating leasc.

Amounts due from lessees under a finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to
the net investment in the leased assels. I'inance lease income is allocated to the periods so as 1o
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the [inance

lease.

I an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components. then the Company applies Ind AS 115
to allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Company applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in Ind AS 109 to the net
investment in the lease. The Company [urther regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual
values used in cadesslating the gross investment in the lease,
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The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term as part of “other income™,

2.19 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear is adjusted for events
such as bonus issuc. bonus clement in a rights issuc. share split. and reverse share split
(consolidation ol shares) that have changed the numbcer of equity shares outstanding, without a

corresponding change in resources.
Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit (considered in determination of basic
earnings per sharce) afier considering the effect of interest and other financing costs or income (net
of attributable taxes) associated with dilutive potential cquity shares by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share adjusted for the weighted
average number of equity shares that would have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares.

2.20  Segment reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of trading ol textiles. garments and the same constitutes a
single reportable business segment as per Ind AS 108. And hence segment reporting specified as per
IND AS 108 is not applicable.

2.21 New standards adopted by the company

Ind AS I — Presentation of Restated financial information

The amendments require companies (o disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information. together with other information. is
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions ol primary users ol general
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any

significant impact in its financial statement.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarily how companies account for delerred tax on transactions such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope ol the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that. on initial rccognition. give rise to cqual taxable and deductible

temporary diftereng Le Company does not expeet this amendment o have any significant
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Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting
estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of
accounting estimates. Under the new definition. accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”™. Entitics develop accounting
estimates if accounting policics require items in Restated (inancial information Lo be measured in a
way that involves measurement uncertainty. The company docs not expect this amendment to have

any significant impact in its [inancial stalcments.

2.22 New Accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issucd from time to time. For
the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the

existing standards applicable to the Company.
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